
 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 
3. ROLL CALL 
4. PRESENTATION 

A. Val Lafferty, Food Rescue US – Lansing Communities 
 

5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 
7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS OF ACTIVITIES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
9. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Communications 
B. Minutes-July 22, 2025 Closed Session 
C. Minutes-August 7, 2025 Regular Township Board Meeting 
D. Bills 
E. Resolution of Support for Food Rescue US - Lansing Communities 
F. Participation Form for the Purdue Direct Settlement (Opioids Settlement) 
G. ImageTrend (Fire RMS) Contract 
H. Planned Unit Development #25-012 – 3560 Hulett Road – Giguere Homes – Reschedule Public 

Hearing 
I. Resolution for Charitable Gaming License – Fastpitch Softball Club of Haslett, Inc. 

 
10. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Ordinance 2025-06 Rooster Regulation Introduction 
 

11. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 
A. Parking Lot Landscaping Ordinance 

 
12. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
13. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
14. CLOSED SESSION – Motion to enter closed session under MCL 15.268(1)(h) to consult with the 

Township attorney regarding a confidential written legal opinion. 
15. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All comments limited to 3 minutes, unless prior approval for additional time for good cause is obtained from the Supervisor. Appointment of Supervisor Pro 
Tem and/ or Temporary Clerk if necessary. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Meridian Township Board 
by contacting: Township Manager Tim Dempsey, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4258 - Ten Day Notice is Required. 

Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 Township Hall  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 
AGENDA 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
TOWNSHIP BOARD – REGULAR MEETING 

August 19, 2025 6:00 PM 



Fill Plates.
Not Landfills.

Lansing Communities MI

517-349-6660



Food Rescue US - Lansing 
Communities is affiliated with a 
national nonprofit focused on 
reducing hunger and food waste 
using an app. 
Volunteers directly deliver surplus 
food from local food businesses to 
social service agencies serving 
individuals and families experiencing 
food insecurity in our greater 
Lansing Metro area. 

Lansing Communities MI



40%
OF ALL FOOD IN THE 
US ENDS UP IN THE 

LANDFILL

255+
MILLION TONS

OF C02EQ 
RELEASED

24+
MILLION OLYMPIC 
POOLS WORTH OF 
WATER WASTED

FOOD WASTE IN THE U.S. IS REAL
The following data is based on the U.S. in 2023.



$52.9B
IN ADDITIONAL 

HEALTHCARE COSTS 
WAS SPENT ON 

FOOD-INSECURE 
HOUSEHOLDS 

1 IN 6
CHILDREN 

ARE LIVING WITH 
HUNGER

23.5M
PEOPLE 

LIVE IN FOOD 
DESERTS

HUNGER IN THE U.S. IS REAL



This is a PERISHABLE FOOD rescue model 
for  PRODUCE, DAIRY, MEATS & BAKED 
GOODS … high-quality, nutritious surplus 
food from commercial food donors and 
delivered directly to local social service 
agencies in our communities that feed the 
food insecure.

• Food Donors: Grocery stores,  
restaurants, bakeries, farms, etc.

• Receiving Agencies: Community 
kitchens, shelters, pantries, family 
centers, etc.

Lansing Communities MI



The web-based app is easy for 
volunteers to use.
★ One at a time as schedule allows, or
★ Adopt a weekly route



WHAT MAKES THIS MODEL UNIQUE?

For Perishables. Direct transfer 
ensures fresh,nutritious foods.
App Tracks Data.
ReliableVolunteers. Flexibility + 
meaningful volunteer experience = 
Source Reduction Infrastructure.
Builds Community. 
Healthier Food System. Volunteers 
are community pollinators to avoid 
waste and build a healthy community!

Lansing Communities MI



E

DONORS
LANSING COMMUNITIES

Regularly Scheduled Rescues, 
PLUS:
● Weekends
● Holidays
● Last Minute

○ Power Outages!
○ Other No Show Rescuers!
○ Store Rejected Shipments! 

(healthy food)
○ After Big Events!
○ Bulk Rescuesl 
○ Guerilla Employees!

Lansing Communities MI

● Aldi - Okemos
● Aldi-West Saginaw
● Cooper's Hawk
● D&W Fresh Mkt Williamston
● Flore Orchard
● Freshies Bakery
● Gift of Life Michigan
● Grand Ledge Public Schools (@ Hayes Intermediate School)
● Haslett Public Schools
● Hiawatha Elementary-Okemos Public Elementary & Middle Schools
● Junior League of Michigan
● Meat on The West Side
● Meridian Farmers Market Gleaning Project
● MI Student Sustainability Summit
● Michigan Farm Bureau - Corporate Headquarters
● MSU - Food Stores
● Okemos High School
● Olive Garden
● Panera Bakery 
● TARGET - East Lansing Store
● Target - Okemos Store
● Target - South Lansing Store
● Target - Westside Saginaw Store
● Trader Joe's - East Lansing
● Trader Joeâ€™s - FLOWERS/PLANTS 
● Walmart Supercenter-Westside Bakery
● Waverly Schools (High School)
● Whole Foods-East Lansing
● Williamston Public Schools



CURRENT RECEIVING AGENCIES

Lansing Communities MI

● Advent House
● Allen Neighborhood Center
● Angel House (Child & Family Org)
● Believers Food Pantry
● Brookdale Sr Liv +Memory Care+Medilodge Haslett (FLOWERS ONLY)
● Child & Family Charities
● City Rescue Mission 
● Cristo Rey Community Center (Kitchen & Pantry)
● Edgewood Village Network Center
● Epicenter Of Worship
● First Presbyterian Food Pantry
● Glass House-Mid-MI Recovery Svs
● Grand Ledge Food Pantry
● Haslett Food Pantry
● Haven House
● Head Start
● Holden House
● Homeless Angels (Shelter-Nightly Meals)
● Karmanos Cancer Institute, McLaren Greater Lansing
● Lakeside Chapel Reachout Center
● Lansing Area AIDS Network (LAAN)
● LMTS Community Outreach
● Lutheran Ascencion Church (FLOWERS ONLY)
● Meridian Township Garden Club
● Mid Michigan Recovery Services
● New Hope Community Center (Holy Cross)
● Okemos Community Food Pantry
● Our Savior Lutheran Food Bank
● Pagans In Need (Food Pantry)1st&3rd Saturday
● South Lansing Ministries (Food Pantry)
● Southside Community Kitchen(SCK)
● St. Luke Lutheran Church
● Williamston  Food Bank

kdkdd



327,203
MEALSPROVIDED TO

THOSE IN NEED

392,651
POUNDS OF FOOD SAVED

FROM LANDFILLS

571
TONS OF CO2EQ AVOIDED

OUR IMPACT - 2,200+ Rescues
From Sept 12, 2023 to July 31, 2025. We have never missed a rescue.





Fill Plates.
Not Landfills.

Lansing Communities MI

517-349-6660



9.A

CONSENT AGENDA  
BOARD 

COMMUNICATIONS 



From:
To:
Cc: Board
Subject: RE: Many blind spots needing pruning on MSU to Lk. Lansing Pathway
Date: Monday, August 4, 2025 3:56:33 PM

Thank you for your email, Tim. Our crews will be working on Phase I in the month of August to bring it into
compliance with our standard of 2’ or clearance from the edge of the pathway. We have been focused on other
areas of the 90-mile pathway system thus far.
 
The Township’s grass ordinance dictates who is responsible for being compliant with the ordinance. Ordinarily,
nobody would be responsible for mowing the areas you are taking pictures and videos of on Phase I of the MSU to
Lake Lansing Trail as they are natural areas, not turf grass.
 
We have already installed blind corner signage near Dawn Ave and will be doing the same between the bridge over
the Red Cedar River and the boardwalk. Public benches are also going to be installed this fall or next spring. We just
received the benches and are working to schedule the concrete installation.
 
Please let us know if you have any questions.
 
Take care,
 
Dan Opsommer
Deputy Township Manager
Director of Public Works & Engineering

Work:  | Fax: 517.853.4099
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864
 
From: Tim Potter < > 
Sent: Monday, August 4, 2025 1:03 PM
To: Board >; Dan Opsommer < >
Subject: Many blind spots needing pruning on MSU to Lk. Lansing Pathway
 
As I noted in my last email on this topic, I'm very thankful for the pruning that happened along the pathway
last month where I most frequently travel, which as you might suspect is the MSU to Lk. Lansing Pathway. 
However, I've noticed a lot of additional blind spots remain along this most popular pathway for those of us
commuting to and from the MSU campus which really needs to be cleared before all the students return.
 
I've added some new videos taken in the last few days to this folder for your review:
https://photos.app.goo.gl/eTLT9k2eWtnsNmuK9
 
I realize that some of this brush might be the responsibility of the property owners along the pathway but will
that stand up in court if someone gets in a serious crash while riding along this (or any paths in our township)
pathway?  I'm also curious if our easement agreement with these land-owners only covers up to the edge of
our asphalt as township responsibility?
 
Tim Potter 
 
*************************
MSU Bike Advisory Comm. member
TCBA Advocacy Comm. member
Ride of Silence webmaster
LCI #5207

Ride of Silence:  www.rideofsilence.org

2026 Ride of Silence: Wed. May 20th, 7:00 PM 
One day. One time. One world, world wide.
Let the silence roar!



From:
To: Board; 
Subject: Re: SENIOR CENTER
Date: Thursday, August 7, 2025 1:44:43 PM
Attachments: image.png

I appreciate the response.  It appears I will not be able to attend tonight
however I will be watching as I am able to do that from work.  Residents
have always reached out to me as I am a long time involved resident.  I
don't know why 2 of today's calls were "private".  In any case, with 5
million dollars, we should be able to find something in that price range
versus breaking ground on the proposed site.  The township has done well
to grow the reserve fund that it has.  Why don't we allow the residents to
grow THEIR reserve funds by not taxing them out of the township.

I will happily take on the task of finding suitable housing for a senior
center without breaking the bank.  The goal is not to stroke egos, or do
something to justify public servants staying in their position.  If someone
really wants to make a positive name for themselves, how about not
raising taxes.

Regards,

Renee Korrey

On Thursday, August 7, 2025 at 01:18:25 PM EDT, Scott Hendrickson >
wrote:

Good Afternoon Renee!

Thank you for your comments! As is our policy, they will appear in our next Board
Packet. 

I appreciate the opportunity to clear a few things up here as well! As I mentioned in our
communication, the Senior and Community Center Task Force was formed with a
mission: to present two proposals to the Board, one for a Senior Center Only and one for
a Senior/Community Center. It met for 8 months and presented those two options. As
such, they have concluded their business. If the Board sees fit to reestablish the Task
Force given the result of this week's vote, that will be a discussion for the Board, but it
requires Board action to do so. 

Regarding future ballot questions, I do not speak for everyone, but rather are just one
vote on a Board of seven. Any decision to put something on the ballot is a vote of the
Township Board. For my own personal opinion on the matter, I can say that I understand



that the voters have spoken on a joint Senior and Community Center through their votes.
If I were to personally support anything  to appear on a future ballot, it would likely be a
Senior Center only.

I don't know why you were contacted by phone by a third party regarding a ballot
question or by whom. People are within their rights to campaign on an issue before the
voters, and often calling is a part of that effort.

As I mentioned in my previous correspondence, should the Board move forward with
another iteration of the Task Force, we will certainly keep you in mind!

Have a great night! Hope we get to see you!

Scott Hendrickson
Supervisor, Meridian Township

5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864

From: renee korrey <r >
Sent: Thursday, August 7, 2025 1:00 PM
To: Board <
Subject: SENIOR CENTER
 
Good Day,

I want to attend the meeting this evening however I am scheduled to work
so I may not be able to.  I am writing this email in case I can't make it.

First, I have been trying to be a part of the Senior Center Task Force since
inception and have been turned down by several individuals.  I just
emailed Scott Hendrickson after the result of the vote and advised him of
my interest going forward.  I have been told that "barring some change,
the Senior Center Task Force has concluded its work".  

Please keep me in mind if this changes.  I seem to recall a mention from
Scott Hendrickson that there was intention to put this back on the ballot
for the Fall even though some board members disagree.  That would mean
the Task Force would remain.  I believe the people spoke and this needs to



be laid to rest.

Second, I received 3 phone calls today; the first 2 being from "private"
numbers and from 2 people who would not ID themselves asking
questions about the board as it relates to the Senior Center proposition. 
They may have found my name from my association with our DDA.  The
last call, from an elderly lady who I seem to recall from a distant past who
did not block her number.  She is concerned that this is being pushed by a
couple people with no consideration for the residents needs or plan of
action for any building on the land you intend to use; such has ICDC.  All
three calls articulated some degree of distrust with the board as it pertains
to the Senior Center concept.  This makes me very curious.

I can't imagine why I have been contacted but it has become obvious to
me that there are concerns.  I hope to attend future meetings if not the
meeting this evening.

I hope to be appointed to the Task Force as not only a trusted member of
our township but also a long standing resident who has remained involved
for years.  

I support the concept of a Senior Center - not as it has been presented.  I
am confident I would be a good addition to that Task Force if in fact, it is
NOT disbanded.  A fresh face with fresh ideas and a "think outside the
box" attitude is just what that task force needs.  I hope you agree.

Regards,

Renee Korrey

East Lansing, Mi 48823



From:
To: Board
Subject: August 7 board meeting—Discussion re: Senior Center
Date: Thursday, August 7, 2025 4:10:58 PM

[Some people who received this message don't often get email from 
]

Dear Meridian Township Board Members,

I understand that at tonight’s board meeting, the board will discuss putting the senior center being back on the fall
ballot (after it was previously voted down).

I would like to take this opportunity to say that I don’t believe it’s fiscally responsible to reconsider this idea, given
that it was already voted down, that it would only serve about 1% of our population, and that there are other more
responsible ways to fund such a center rather than raising taxes, such as tapping into the $10 million dollar reserve.

Furthermore, it will not only cost taxpayers more to build such a facility, but will continue to accrue additional costs
to operate and staff it.

Community members, especially seniors, are already paying through the roof for housing, groceries, taxes,
transportation, utilities, gas and healthcare.

Finally, each time this idea is put on the ballot, it costs thousands and thousands of dollars to do so. I therefore do
not support raising taxes to put a senior center back on another ballot, especially since it was already voted down.

I feel that building a Senior Center for 1% of our population is a luxury, not a NEED — a want, not a necessity.

Respectfully,

Debra Lashbrook

East Lansing

Sent from my iPad





From:
To: Board
Subject: Senior Center
Date: Thursday, August 7, 2025 6:45:41 PM

[Some people who received this message don't often get email from 
 ]

I did not yes or will not vote yes for another senior center.  We have the Hannah Center and it is awesome,
affordable, many classes for health and fitness and for the arts.  Also many group discussion and interactive
opportunities available. And conveniently located.
Why start over.   Why not support this Senior center and open it to other local areas without an additional fee.
SUPPORT WHAT WE HAVE.  ENRICH WHAT WE HAVE.
Karlena Dennis
Golden Circle
East Lansing.
But Ingram county‍♀
Sent from my iPhone







Thank you for your prompt attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

Michael Henry Inga

Lansing, Michigan, 48906





reversal of this partial denial. I demand immediate disclosure of the missing records or, if they
are legally exempt or do not exist, a proper, statutorily compliant written notice of denial
explaining the basis for non-disclosure.

I expect the Township Board to fully address this appeal and ensure complete compliance with
the Michigan FOIA within the statutory timeframe for appeals.

Please be aware that if Meridian Township fails to properly address this formal appeal within
the statutory timeframe, I will be left with no option but to file a lawsuit in Circuit Court to
compel disclosure and seek all applicable statutory damages, costs, and attorney's fees.

Sincerely,

Michael Henry Inga 

 

Lansing, Michigan, 48906





16

Bennett Woods Elementary
Address building pressing needs improvements which include interior fi nish upgrades, select casework replacement / 
repair, renovation of existing toilet rooms not yet updated.  Remove the dumpster screen wall and repair sidewalks. Select 
roof repairs, new exterior doors and select windows and enclosure repairs.  Improve interior lighting & controls and replace 
building controls, water heater and fi re alarm systems.  Improve interior signage. Provide new kitchen equipment. Construct 
secure vestibule entry sequence.  Provide new student instructional classroom and common area furniture.  Provide 
furniture for sensory rooms, itinerant staff  and SEL spaces.

Hiawatha Elementary
Construct new building addition to provide additional classroom and student breakout learning spaces.  Construct secure 
vestibule entry sequence.  Address building pressing needs improvements which include interior fi nish upgrades, select 
casework replacement / repair, renovation of existing toilet rooms not yet updated.  Improve interior signage. Select roof 
repairs, new exterior doors and select windows and enclosure repairs.  Replace and improve interior lighting, building 
controls, water heater and electrical items.  Provide new kitchen equipment.   Provide new student instructional classroom 
and common area furniture.  Provide furniture for sensory rooms, itinerant staff  and SEL spaces.

Central Montessori Elementary 
Construct secure vestibule entry sequence.  Address building pressing needs improvements which include interior fi nish 
upgrades, locker and interior door replacement, renovation of staff  toilet rooms.  Select roof repairs, new exterior doors and 
select windows and enclosure repairs.  Replace and improve interior lighting, storm and sanitary drainage systems. Provide 
new kitchen equipment.  Provide new student instructional classroom and common area furniture.  Provide furniture for 
sensory rooms, itinerant staff  and SEL spaces.

Okemos High School
Construct secure vestibule entry sequence.  Address building pressing needs improvements which include interior fi nish 
upgrades, casework replacement, renovation of existing toilet rooms not yet updated.  Select roof repairs, new exterior 
doors and select enclosure repairs.  Replace and improve interior lighting.  Repair and Replace pool fi nishes and HVAC/
Humidity control systems.  Select mechanical repairs & improvements. Construct new 5,000sf Performing Arts addition. 
Construct new 4,000 sf cafeteria and associated 2,000sf kitchen renovation with new kitchen equipment.  Provide new 
student instructional classroom and common area furniture.  Provide furniture for sensory rooms, itinerant staff  and SEL 
spaces.

Okemos High School Athletics
Address pressing needs improvements which include updating scoreboards, replacing select site paving and providing 
barrier free access.  Remove the ticket booth and repair the entrance canopy.  Update toilet rooms. Replace portable 
bleachers.  Construct 12 new tennis courts at Chippewa site (for HS Tennis Program) adjacent to recently constructed 
courts.  Construct new Baseball/Softball quad with pressbox, concessions and locker/toilet room building at Chippewa site.  
Provide new select furniture and athletic equipment.
Edgewood Early Chlidhood Center 
Address building pressing needs improvements which include interior fi nish upgrades, casework replacement, renovation 
of existing toilet rooms not yet updated.  New roof, exterior doors and select windows and enclosure repairs.  Replace and 
improve interior lighting, building controls, water heater and exhaust systems.  Provide new kitchen equipment.  Construct 
secure vestibule entry sequence.  Provide new student instructional classroom and common area furniture.  Provide 
furniture for sensory rooms, itinerant staff  and SEL spaces.

Meridian Senior Center
Relocate Senior Center to existing Kinawa or Cornell buildings. Address select improvements which include interior fi nish 
upgrades, casework replacement, renovation of existing toilet rooms not yet updated, and enclosure improvement at new 
location. Provide new furniture and equipment.

Administration and District Operations + Technology
Relocate these functions to the  existing Kinawa building.  Provide select improvements for new functions which would 
include roof repair, exterior door and entry improvements, fi nish upgrades, signage improvements,and select HVAC, lighting, 
power, and building controls upgrades. Provide a combination of new and repurposed furniture from elsewhere in the 
district.







c. 
Any private place or premises where in the opinion of the Township superintendent or his agent the
specified substances constitute a dangerous condition or are detrimental to the public health, safety, or
welfare or offend aesthetic sensibilities or may cause sickness or attract flies, insects, rodents, or vermin.

 Two simple, effective solutions exist:

                1.  Require hunters to bag and remove gut piles along with their equipment and harvest.

2.  Allow burial of gut piles at least two feet deep, using affordable tools such as folding               shovels
(available for under $20).

These measures would align Meridian Township with state guidelines, protect our environment, and safeguard the
health and safety of our residents.

I appreciate your time and consideration, and I urge the Board to act on this critical issue.

Sincerely,
Shannon Davis





From:
To: Board
Cc:
Subject: Senior Center Options
Date: Wednesday, August 13, 2025 2:25:24 PM

I strongly encourage the Township to quickly determine how large a Senior Center could be
constructed on the fire station property for $5 million.  This should be used as a baseline for
evaluating potential rehabilitation of an existing building.
 
Respectfully,
 
Steve Vagnozzi

 



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Planned Unit Development #25020  

(The Greens) 

Wednesday, August 27, 2025 

  

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Planned Unit Development #25020 (The Greens) 
Public Hearing 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Director of Community Development and Planning of the 
Charter Township of Meridian will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, August 27, 2025 at 
2:00 p.m. in the Town Hall Room, located at 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, to hear all persons 
interested in a Planned Unit Development (PUD) minor amendment request from Gregoire & 
Rachel Michaud.  The request is for a minor amendment to the Greens at Walnut Hills planned 
unit development (PUD #86014) to combine lots 40 and 41. The subject site is zoned RAA 
(Single Family-Low Density). 
 
Information may be examined at the Department of Community Planning and Development, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864-1198 (phone 517-853-4560), between the 
hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.  Written comments may be sent 
prior to the public hearing to Keith Chapman, Associate Planner, Charter Township of 
Meridian, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan, 48864, or by email to 
chapman@meridian.mi.us. 
 
Publish:   City Pulse    Angela Demas 
   August 13, 2025   Township Clerk 
 
1 Affidavit, please 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: PUD #25012 (3560 Hulett) 

Tuesday, September 2, 2025 

 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Planned Unit Development #25012 (3560 Hulett) 
Public Hearing 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of Meridian will hold 
a public hearing on Tuesday, September 2, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. in the Meridian Municipal 
Building, Town Hall Room, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI, 48864 to hear all persons interested 
in a planned unit development (PUD) request. Jim Giguere has proposed a planned unit 
development consisting of 6 lots. The approximate 5-acre parcel is zoned RA (Single Family, 
Medium Density) located at 3560 Hulett Road.  
 
Information may be examined at the Department of Community Planning and Development, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864-1198 (phone 517-853-4560), between the 
hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.  Written comments may be sent 
prior to the public hearing to Keith Chapman, Associate Planner, Charter Township of 
Meridian, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan, 48864, or by email to 
chapman@meridian.mi.us. 
 
Publish:   Lansing State Journal    Angela Demas 
   August 18, 2025    Township Clerk 
 
1 Affidavit, please 
 
 

 



~ 
MERIDIAN A 

T O W N S H I P.,.-,, 
~ 

Meridian Township 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos, MI 48864 

P 517.853.4000 
F 517.853.4096 

Township Board: 

Scott Hendrickson 
Township Supervisor 

Angela Demas 
Township Clerk 

Phil Deschaine 
Township Treasurer 

Kathy Ann Sundland 
Township Trustee 

Marna Wilson 
Township Trustee 

Nickolas Lentz 
Township Trustee 

August 15, 2025 

Mr. Scott Hendrickson 
Meridian Township Supervisor 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos, Michigan 48864 

Dear Supervisor Hendrickson, 

As many of you are aware, over the past few months I've been experiencing reoccurring 
serious medical issues. I've been under the direct care of The University of Michigan 
Health System. 

My goal, from the onset, was to complete my service as Township Treasurer through end 
of my term in 2028. During a recent visit with my medical team, it has unfortunately 
become abundantly clear that I'm not able to remain Township Treasurer. 

Serving Meridian Township over the past decade as Parks Commissioner, Township 
Trustee and Township Treasurer has been the highlight of my professional career. On a 
personal note, I want to humbly thank the Board, staff and residents for their support in 
my role as a member of the Meridian Township team. 

Peter Trezise 
Township Trustee Please accept my resignation as Township Treasurer effective September 16, 2025, 11:59 

PM. I've aligned my retirement date with the deadline to collect, and distribute, summer 
2025 taxes. 

Timothy H. Dempsey 
Township Manager In closing, thank you, and the entire Board, for their support over the past few months. 

Sincerely, 

/Jh~ 
Phil Deschaine 

~ 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us 

..____ 



9.C

CONSENT AGENDA 
PROPOSED BOARD MINUTES 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular Meeting of 
August 7, 2025 as submitted.  (1)

ALTERNATE MOTION: 

Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular Meeting of 
August 7, 2025 with the following amendment(s):[insert 
amendments]

(1)

(1)



Page 1 

 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
REGULAR MEETING TOWNSHIP BOARD -DRAFT- 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198 
517.853.4000, Township Hall Room 
THURSDAY, August 7, 2025, 6:00PM 
 
PRESENT: Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Lentz, Trustee 

Trezise, and Trustee Wilson 
ABSENT: Trustee Sundland 

STAFF: Township Manager Dempsey, Township Deputy Manager Opsommer, Fire Chief 
Hamel, Finance Director Blonde, IT Director Gebes, Community Development and 
Planning Director Schmitt, Parks and Recreation Director Wisinski, Communications 
Manager Diehl 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Supervisor Hendrickson called the August 7, 2025, Regular Township Board meeting to order 
at 6:00 pm. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 
 
Supervisor Hendrickson led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
3. ROLL CALL 

 
Clerk Demas called the roll of the Board.  Five board members present at 6:01 pm. 
 
Trustee Sundland absent.  Trustee Trezise arrived at 6:21 pm. 

 
4. PRESENTATION 

 
A. Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) 

Bob Trezise gave a presentation about LEAP. 
 

5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Supervisor Hendrickson opened public comment at 6:23 pm. 
 
Jeff Kessner, John Weslowsky, Milton Scales, Jim Brandell spoke about Discussion Item 11.B 
 
Cheryl Collins spoke about the August 2025 election. 
 
Michael Inga spoke about FOIA. 
 
Supervisor Hendrickson closed public comment at 6:41 pm. 
 
 

 



Page 2 

6.  TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 
 
Manager Dempsey gave updates on: 

• Public survey available for website redesign feedback 
• Recognized Township staff and election workers for their efforts regarding 

the August election 
  

7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS OF ACTIVITIES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Treasurer Deschaine and Supervisor Hendrickson thanked Clerk Demas for work regarding the 
August election. 
 
Clerk Demas and Supervisor Hendrickson thanked election staff for their work regarding the 
August election. 

 
Trustee Lentz attended the Tri-County Regional Planning Commission meeting. 

 
8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Trustee Wilson moved to approve the Agenda. Supported by Trustee Lentz. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer Deschaine, 

Trustee Lentz, Trustee Trezise, and Trustee Wilson 
 

NAYS: NONE 
 

Motion carried: 6-0 
 

9. CONSENT AGENDA  
 
Trustee Wilson moved to approve the Consent Agenda excluding item 9.C Minutes from 
the Closed Session which will have to be reviewed at a later date.  Supported by Trustee 
Trezise. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer 

Deschaine, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Trezise, and Trustee Wilson 
 
NAYS: NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
10. ACTION ITEMS 

 
A. Meridian Mall Parking Lot Resurfacing Agreement 

 
Director Wisinski gave an overview of the discussion that has occurred to date.  

Trustee Wilson moved to adopt the parking maintenance agreement and authorize 
the Township Supervisor and Clerk to execute the agreement. Supported by Trustee 
Trezise. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer  

Deschaine, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Trezise, and  



Page 3 

Trustee Wilson 
 

NAYS: NONE 
 

Motion carried: 6-0 
B. Eyde Central Park Property 

 
Director Schmitt gave an overview of the discussion that has occurred to date. 
 
Trustee Wilson expressed concerns about the resolution language and proposed an 
amendment. 

 
Trustee Wilson moved to amend the ending of the “Now Therefore” clause to end at 
“to change the zoning designations.”  Supported by Trustee Lentz. 
 
VOICE VOTE:    YEAS: Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer  

Deschaine, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Trezise, and  
Trustee Wilson 

 
NAYS: NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
Trustee Trezise moved to approve the attached resolution referring the proposal for 
the Eyde Central Park property to the Planning Commission for its recommendation 
as to whether or not the court orders governing the zoning, permitted uses, and 
development of parcels 22-202-001, 15-400-031, and 22-203-001 should be 
amended to replace the current zoning with a new classification. Supported by 
Treasurer Deschaine. 
 
VOICE VOTE:   YEAS: Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer  

Deschaine, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Trezise, and  
Trustee Wilson 
 
NAYS: NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

  
 
11. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
A. Ordinance 2025-06 – Rooster Regulation 

 
Director Schmitt outlined ordinance 2025-06. 
 
Board members asked about the logistics of regulating roosters in the Township and 
expressed support for updating the ordinance.  

At 7:20 pm, Supervisor Hendrickson called for a 5-minute recess.  At 7:27 pm, the Board 
reconvened. 
 

B. Community and Senior Center Next Steps 
 



Page 4 

Manager Dempsey gave an overview of the memo. 
 
Board members expressed concern about available spaces for this project and timeline for 
use of the State of Michigan grant.  
 
Board members expressed support for exploring Option 2. 
 
Board members asked staff to explore options for moving forward with Option 2 and to 
also look for potential existing spaces. 

 
12. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 
Supervisor Hendrickson opened public comments at 8:26 pm. 
 
Steve Vangnozzi and Milton Scales spoke about item 11.B. 

 
Supervisor Hendrickson closed public comments at 8:31 pm. 
 

13. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  
 

Clerk Demas thanked voters for participating in the election. 
 
Supervisor Hendrickson added an additional request regarding item 11.B for staff to work with 
the Senior Center Advisory Board. 
 
Treasurer Deschaine and Trustee Lentz thanked Board Members for discussing item 11.B 
constructively. 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Treasurer Wilson moved to adjourn. Seconded by Treasurer Deschaine. 

 
VOICE VOTE YEAS: Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer 

Deschaine, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Trezise, and Trustee Wilson 
 
NAYS:  NONE 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
The meeting adjourned at 8:33 pm 

 
__________________________________ 

Scott Hendrickson 
Township Supervisor 

 
__________________________________ 

Angela Demas 
Township Clerk 





























 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

9.E 

To:  Township Board 

From:  Tim Dempsey, Township Manager 

Date:  August 14, 2025 

Re:  Food Rescue US – Lansing Communities MI  

 

Per the presentation from Val Lafferty representing Food Rescue US – Lansing Communities MI, 
the organization is seeking a resolution of support. This resolution recognizes their food rescue 
activities and endorses their efforts to encourage support from residents, businesses, and civic 
organizations. 
 
Staff recommends the resolution be approved and proposes the following motion: 
 

 MOVE TO APPROVE THE RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR FOOD 
RESCUE US – LANSING COMMUNITIES MI 

 
Attachment:  Resolution of Support 
   



RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT 
Charter Township of Meridian  

In Support of Food Rescue US – Lansing Communities MI 

 

WHEREAS, Meridian Charter Township is committed to supporting the health, well-being, 
and sustainability of its residents through proactive community partnerships and resource 
stewardship; 

WHEREAS, Food Rescue US – Lansing Communities MI is a nonprofit organization dedicated 
to rescuing surplus, perishable food and redistributing it to individuals and organizations in need 
across the Greater Lansing area, including within the Charter Township Meridian; 

WHEREAS, reducing food waste and addressing food insecurity are both critical goals that 
align with the values of Meridian Township and benefit the public good, the environment, and 
vulnerable community members; 

WHEREAS, Food Rescue US – Lansing Communities MI actively engages volunteers and 
technology to create an efficient, hyperlocal food rescue network that supports local food pantries, 
shelters, and meal programs; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Meridian Charter Township Board formally 
recognizes and expresses its support for the mission and operations of Food Rescue US – Lansing 
Communities MI; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Township encourages residents, businesses, and civic 
organizations to support food recovery and hunger relief initiatives by volunteering, donating 
surplus food, and collaborating with Food Rescue US; 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that this resolution be shared publicly and presented at a public 
meeting as a demonstration of Meridian Charter Township’s commitment to environmental 
responsibility, community health, and local partnership. 

 

ADOPTED: YEAS: _________________________________________ 

   NAYS: _________________________________________ 

 
 
I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 
resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 19th day of August, 2025. 

 
 
_____________________________ 
Angela Demas 
Township Clerk 



 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

To:  Township Board  

From:  Bernadette Blonde, Finance Director  

Date:  August 19, 2025 

Re:  Participation Form for the Purdue Direct Settlement (Opioids Settlement) 

 

The State of Michigan recently settled with Purdue Pharmaceuticals and the Sackler Family 

regarding their role in Michigan’s opioid epidemic.  

A conservative estimate of Meridian Charter Township’s projected amount from the 

Purdue/Sackler National Opioid Settlement is included below. 

Allocation Percentage – 0.0423078149%  

Estimated Total (15 Years) - $25,963.88 

Staff recommends the Board approve the Subdivision Participation and Release agreement with 

the following motion:  

MOTION TO APPROVE THE SUBDIVISION PARTICIPATION AND RELEASE AGREEMENT 

(EXHIBIT K) RELATED TO THE MICHIGAN STATE SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT FOR 

ALLOCATION OF OPIOD SETTLKEMENT FUNDS AND AUTHORIZE THE TOWNSHIP MANAGER 

TO SIGN THE AGREEMENT 

 

Attachments: 
 
Participation document for the Purdue Direct Settlement (Opioid Settlement)  



New National Opioids Settlement: Purdue
Opioids Implementation Administrator
opioidsparticipation@rubris.com

MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MI
Reference Number: CL-1734567

TO LOCAL POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS:
 

THIS PACKAGE CONTAINS DOCUMENTATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE NEW 
NATIONAL OPIOIDS SETTLEMENT. YOU MUST TAKE ACTION IN ORDER TO 

PARTICIPATE.

Deadline:   September 30, 2025  

A new proposed national opioids settlement has been reached with Purdue (and 
certain of its affiliates) and the Sackler family. This Participation Package is a follow-
up communication to the Notice of New National Opioids Settlement recently received 
electronically by your subdivision. 

The  proposed  settlement  is  being  implemented  in  connection  with  Purdue’s 
bankruptcy  proceedings,  and  consists  of,  among  other  things,  a  settlement  of 
Purdue’s claims against the Sacklers and certain other parties (referred to as the 
“Purdue Estate Settlement”), and settlements of direct claims against the Sacklers 
held by States, local governments and other creditors (collectively, the “Purdue Direct 
Settlement”, and together with the Estate Settlement, the “Purdue Settlement”).  The 
Purdue Direct Settlement for States and local governments is documented in the 
Governmental Entity and Shareholder Direct Settlement Agreement.

You are receiving this Participation Package because all eligible States and territories, 
including Michigan, are participating in the Purdue Direct Settlement.

This electronic envelope contains: 

 The Participation Form for the Purdue Direct Settlement, including a release of 
any claims

 A  copy,  for  your  reference,  of  the  updated  Michigan  State-Subdivision 
Agreement, which is in the process of being ratified

The Participation Form must be executed, without alteration, and submitted 
on  or  before  September  30,  2025,  in  order  for  your  subdivision  to  be 
considered for initial participation calculations and payment eligibility under 
the Purdue Direct Settlement. 

Based upon subdivision participation forms received on or before  September 30, 
2025,  the  subdivision  participation  rate  will  be  used  to  determine  whether 
participation is sufficient for the Purdue Settlement to move forward and whether a 
state earns its maximum potential payment under the Purdue Direct Settlement. If 
the Purdue Settlement moves forward and goes effective, your release will become 

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E

mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com


effective. If the Purdue Settlement does not move forward, that release will not 
become effective. 

Any subdivision that does  not participate in the Purdue Direct Settlement cannot 
directly share in the Purdue Direct Settlement funds, even if other subdivisions in the 
state are participating and sharing in those Purdue Direct Settlement funds. Any 
subdivision that does  not participate may also reduce the amount of money for 
programs to remediate the opioid crisis in its state. Please note, a subdivision will not 
necessarily directly receive Purdue Settlement funds by participating; decisions on 
how Purdue Settlement funds will be allocated within a state are subject to intrastate 
agreements or state statutes.

You are encouraged to discuss the terms and benefits of the Purdue Settlement with 
your counsel, your Attorney General’s Office, and other contacts within your state. 
Many states are implementing and allocating funds for the Purdue Settlement the 
same as they did for the prior opioids settlements but states may choose to treat the 
Purdue Settlement differently.

Information and documents regarding the Purdue Settlement, including a complete 
copy of the Governmental Entity and Shareholder Direct Settlement Agreement, and 
how it is being implemented in your state and how funds will be allocated within your 
state  can  be  found  on  the  national  settlement  website  at 
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/purdue-sacklers-settlements/. This  website 
will be supplemented as additional documents are created.

Updated Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Michigan is in the process of ratifying an updated State-Subdivision Agreement.  A 
copy, for your reference, is included in this packet.  The updated agreement restates, 
combines, and amends all prior Michigan State-Subdivision Agreements.  To provide 
greater certainty in what proposed uses of opioid settlement funds qualify as opioid 
remediation, and to provide greater coordination and transparency, the updated 
agreement:  (1)  allows  participating  local  governments  to  request  generalized 
guidance from the Michigan Department of Attorney General on certain topics, (2) 
institutes an annual reporting requirement for the State and some participating local 
governments, and (3) allows participating local governments and the State to ask 
each other for additional information about opioid expenditures or allocations.

How to return signed forms:

There are three methods for returning the executed  Participation Form and any 
supporting documentation to the Implementation Administrator:

(1)Electronic  Signature  via  DocuSign:  Executing  the  Participation  Form 
electronically  through  DocuSign  will  return  the  signed  form  to  the 
Implementation Administrator and associate your form with your subdivision’s 
records. Electronic signature is the most efficient method for returning the 
Participation Form, allowing for more timely participation and the potential to 

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E

https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/purdue-sacklers-settlements/


meet  higher  settlement  payment  thresholds,  and  is  therefore  strongly 
encouraged. 

(2)Manual  Signature  returned  via  DocuSign:  DocuSign  allows  forms  to  be 
downloaded,  signed  manually,  then  uploaded  to  DocuSign  and  returned 
automatically to the Implementation Administrator. Please be sure to complete 
all  fields.  As  with  electronic  signature,  returning  a  manually  signed 
Participation Form via DocuSign will associate your signed forms with your 
subdivision’s records.

(3)Manual Signature returned via electronic mail: If your subdivision is unable to 
return an executed Participation Form using DocuSign, the signed Participation 
Form may be returned via electronic mail to opioidsparticipation@rubris.com. 
Please include the name, state, and reference ID of your subdivision in the 
body of the email and use the subject line Settlement Participation Form – 
[Subdivision Name, Subdivision State] – [Reference ID].

Detailed instructions on how to sign and return the  Participation Form, including 
changing  the  authorized  signer,  can  be  found  at 
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/purdue-sacklers-settlements/. You  may  also 
contact opioidsparticipation@rubris.com.

YOU  MUST  PARTICIPATE  IN  THE  PURDUE  DIRECT  SETTLEMENT  BY 
RETURNING  YOUR  PARTICIPATION  FORM  IN  ORDER  TO  RECEIVE  THE 
BENEFITS OF THE PURDUE SETTLEMENT.

Please note that this is NOT a solicitation or a request for subdivisions to 
submit votes on the Purdue bankruptcy plan. This settlement package only 
pertains to a decision to participate in the Purdue Direct Settlement.  If you 
receive a package to vote on the plan you should follow the applicable 
instructions  for  voting.  PLEASE  NOTE  THAT  VOTING  ON  THE  PLAN  IS 
SEPARATE FROM PARTICIPATION IN THE PURDUE DIRECT SETTLEMENT.

The sign-on period for subdivisions ends on September 30, 2025. 

If you have any questions about executing the Participation Form, please contact 
your counsel, the Implementation Administrator at 
opioidsparticipation@rubris.com, or Assistant Attorney General Matt Walker at 517-
335-7622 or AG-OpioidLitigation@michigan.gov.

Thank you, 
 
Implementation Administrator for the Purdue Direct Settlement

The  Implementation  Administrator  is retained  to  provide  the  settlement  notice  
required by the Purdue Direct Settlement to manage the collection of the participation 
forms for it.

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E

mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com
mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/purdue-sacklers-settlements/
mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com


EXHIBIT K

Subdivision Participation and Release Form

Governmental Entity: MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP State: MI
Authorized Signatory: /officialname_purdue/
Address 1: /address1_purdue/
Address 2: /address2_purdue/
City, State, Zip: /cit_pd/                                     /state_pd/                       /zi_pd/
Phone: /phone_purdue/
Email: /email_purdue/

The governmental entity identified above (“Governmental Entity”), in order to obtain and 
in consideration for the benefits provided to the Governmental Entity pursuant to that certain 
Governmental  Entity  &  Shareholder  Direct  Settlement  Agreement  accompanying  this 
participation form (the “Agreement”)1, and acting through the undersigned authorized official, 
hereby elects to participate in the Agreement, grant the releases set forth below, and agrees as  
follows.  

1. The Governmental Entity is aware of and has reviewed the Agreement, and agrees that by 
executing  this  Participation  and  Release  Form,  the  Governmental  Entity  elects  to 
participate in the Agreement and become a Participating Subdivision as provided therein. 

2. The Governmental Entity shall promptly after the Effective Date, and prior to the filing of 
the  Consent  Judgment,  dismiss  with  prejudice  any Shareholder  Released  Claims and 
Released Claims that it has filed.  With respect to any Shareholder Released Claims and 
Released Claims pending in In re National Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804, 
the Governmental Entity authorizes the Plaintiffs’ Executive Committee to execute and file 
on  behalf  of  the  Governmental  Entity  a  Stipulation  of  Dismissal  with  Prejudice 
substantially in the form found at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com.

3. The Governmental Entity agrees to the terms of the Agreement pertaining to Participating 
Subdivisions as defined therein. 

4. By agreeing to the terms of the Agreement and becoming a Releasor, the Governmental  
Entity  is  entitled  to  the  benefits  provided  therein,  including,  if  applicable,  monetary 
payments beginning following the Effective Date. 

5. The Governmental Entity agrees to use any monies it receives through the Agreement 
solely for the purposes provided therein.  

6. The Governmental Entity submits to the jurisdiction of the court in the Governmental 
Entity’s state where the Consent Judgment is filed for purposes limited to that court’s role 
as and to the extent provided in, and for resolving disputes to the extent provided in, the 

1 Capitalized terms used in this Exhibit K but not otherwise defined in this Exhibit K have the meanings given to 
them in the Agreement or, if not defined in the Agreement, the Master Settlement Agreement. 

K-1

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E

https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


Agreement.  The Governmental Entity likewise agrees to arbitrate before the National 
Arbitration  Panel  as  provided  in,  and  for  resolving  disputes  to  the  extent  otherwise 
provided in, the Agreement.

7. The Governmental Entity has the right to enforce the Agreement as provided therein.

8. The Governmental Entity, as a Participating Subdivision, hereby becomes a Releasor for all 
purposes  in  the  Agreement,  including  without  limitation  all  provisions  of  Article  10 
(Release),  and  along  with  all  departments,  agencies,  divisions,  boards,  commissions, 
districts, instrumentalities of any kind and attorneys, and any person in his or her official  
capacity whether elected or appointed to serve any of the foregoing and any agency, person, 
or other entity claiming by or through any of the foregoing, and any other entity identified 
in the definition of Subdivision Releasor, to the maximum extent of its authority, for good 
and valuable consideration, the adequacy of which is hereby confirmed, the Shareholder 
Released Parties and Released Parties are, as of the Effective Date, hereby released and 
forever discharged by the Governmental Entity and its Subdivision Releasors from: any 
and all Causes of Action, including, without limitation, any Estate Cause of Action and any 
claims that the Governmental Entity or its Subdivision Releasors would have presently or 
in  the future  been legally  entitled to  assert  in  its  own right  (whether  individually or  
collectively), notwithstanding section 1542 of the California Civil Code or any law of any 
jurisdiction that is similar, comparable or equivalent thereto (which shall conclusively be 
deemed waived), whether existing or hereinafter arising, in each case, (A) directly or  
indirectly based on, arising out of, or in any way relating to or concerning, in whole or in 
part, (i) the Debtors, as such Entities existed prior to or after the Petition Date, and their  
Affiliates, (ii) the Estates, (iii) the Chapter 11 Cases, or (iv) Covered Conduct and (B) as to 
which any conduct, omission or liability of any Debtor or any Estate is the legal cause or is 
otherwise a legally relevant factor (each such release, as it pertains to the Shareholder 
Released Parties, the “Shareholder Released Claims”, and as it pertains to the Released 
Parties other than the Shareholder Released Parties,  the “Released Claims”).   For the 
avoidance of doubt and without limiting the foregoing: the Shareholder Released Claims 
and Released Claims include any Cause of Action that has been or may be asserted against 
any Shareholder Released Party or Released Party by the Governmental  Entity or its 
Subdivision Releasors (whether or not such party has brought such action or proceeding) in 
any  federal,  state,  or  local  action  or  proceeding  (whether  judicial,  arbitral,  or 
administrative) (A) directly or indirectly based on, arising out of, or in any way relating to 
or concerning, in whole or in part, (i) the Debtors, as such Entities existed prior to or after 
the Petition Date, and their Affiliates, (ii) the Estates, (iii) the Chapter 11 Cases, or (iv) 
Covered Conduct and (B) as to which any conduct, omission or liability of any Debtor or 
any Estate is the legal cause or is otherwise a legally relevant factor.

9. As  a  Releasor,  the  Governmental  Entity  hereby  absolutely,  unconditionally,  and 
irrevocably covenants not to bring, file, or claim, or to cause, assist or permit to be brought, 
filed, or claimed, or to otherwise seek to establish liability for any Shareholder Released 
Claims or Released Claims against any Shareholder Released Party or Released Party in 
any forum whatsoever, subject in all respects to Section 9.02 of the Master Settlement 
Agreement.  The releases provided for herein (including the term “Shareholder Released 

K-2

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Claims”  and  “Released  Claims”)  are  intended  by  the  Governmental  Entity  and  its  
Subdivision Releasors to be broad and shall be interpreted so as to give the Shareholder 
Released Parties and Released Parties the broadest possible release of any liability relating 
in any way to Shareholder Released Claims and Released Claims and extend to the full 
extent of the power of the Governmental Entity to release claims.  The Agreement shall be a 
complete bar to any Shareholder Released Claim and Released Claims.

10. To the maximum extent of the Governmental Entity’s power, the Shareholder Released 
Parties  and  the  Released  Parties  are,  as  of  the  Effective  Date,  hereby  released  and 
discharged from any and all Shareholder Released Claims and Released Claims of the 
Subdivision Releasors.

11. The Governmental Entity hereby takes on all rights and obligations of a Participating 
Subdivision as set forth in the Agreement.

12. In connection with the releases provided for in the Agreement, each Governmental Entity 
expressly waives,  releases,  and forever  discharges any and all  provisions,  rights,  and 
benefits  conferred by any law of  any state  or  territory of  the United States  or  other 
jurisdiction, or principle of common law, which is similar, comparable, or equivalent to 
§ 1542 of the California Civil Code, which reads:

General Release; extent.  A general release does not extend to claims that 
the creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or her 
favor at the time of executing the release that, if known by him or her, would 
have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor or released 
party.

A Releasor may hereafter discover facts other than or different from those which it knows, 
believes, or assumes to be true with respect to the Shareholder Released Claims or such  
other  Claims released  pursuant  to  this  release,  but  each  Governmental  Entity  hereby 
expressly waives and fully, finally, and forever settles, releases and discharges, upon the 
Effective Date, any and all Shareholder Released Claims or such other Claims released 
pursuant to this release that may exist as of such date but which Releasors do not know or 
suspect to exist, whether through ignorance, oversight, error, negligence or through no fault 
whatsoever,  and which, if  known, would materially affect the Governmental Entities’ 
decision to participate in the Agreement.

13. Nothing herein is intended to modify in any way the terms of the Agreement, to which 
Governmental Entity hereby agrees.  To the extent any portion of this Participation and 
Release Form not relating to the release of, or bar against, liability is interpreted differently 
from the Agreement in any respect, the Agreement controls.  

14. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in the Agreement, (x) nothing herein 
shall (A) release any Excluded Claims or (B) be construed to impair in any way the rights 
and obligations of any Person under the Agreement; and (y) the Releases set forth herein 
shall be subject to being deemed void to the extent set forth in Section 9.02 of the Master  
Settlement Agreement.

K-3

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



I have all necessary power and authorization to execute this Participation and Release Form 
on behalf of the Governmental Entity.

Signature: /signer_1_purdue/                                       

Name: /name_1_purdue/                                        

Title: /title_1_purdue/                                          

Date: /date_1_purdue/                                          

K-4

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



MICHIGAN STATE-SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT FOR ALLOCATION OF 
OPIOID SETTLEMENT AGREEMENTS 

The People of the State of Michigan and its communities have been harmed 
by misfeasance, nonfeasance, and malfeasance committed by certain entities within 
the pharmaceutical industry.  The conduct of such Pharmaceutical Entities has 
caused, or contributed to the existence of, a public nuisance associated with the 
opioid public health epidemic. 

The State, through its Attorney General, and Litigating Local Governments, 
through their elected representatives and counsel, are separately engaged in 
litigation seeking to hold the Pharmaceutical Entities accountable for the damage 
caused by their misfeasance, nonfeasance, and malfeasance by seeking 
compensation for past damages and imposing the equitable remedy of nuisance 
abatement.  The State and Litigating Local Governments litigated their claims in 
their proprietary, sovereign, and quasi-sovereign capacities. 

To allocate monetary payments received from these Pharmaceutical Entities, 
the State and Litigating Local Governments agree to the following State-
Subdivision Agreement. For clarity, this Agreement restates, combines, and amends 
all prior State-Subdivision Agreements and provides greater detail on reporting of 
opioid remediation expenditures.  

I. Definitions 

As used in this Agreement

A. “Administrative Fund” is 0.3% of the Local Government Share.

B. “Actual Attorney Fees” are the aggregate contingent fees paid to a
Local Litigating Attorney for work performed for a Litigating Local
Government for the Settlements and associated litigation, based on a
Litigating Local Government’s Actual Total Recovery.  This does not
include any fee payments for common benefit work as defined by the
Settlements.

C. “Actual Total Recovery” is the aggregated monetary recovery that a
Litigating Local Government receives, based on that Litigating Local
Government’s Final Allocation Percentage and aggregate Local
Government Share less the aggregate amounts for the Administrative
Fund, Special Circumstance Fund plus the aggregate amount paid by
the Litigating Local Government Attorney Fee Fund.  For the
avoidance of doubt, this may be expressed mathematically as Actual
Total Recovery = Final Allocation Percentage x (Local Government

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Page 2 of 13 

Share – aggregate Administrative Fund –aggregate Special 
Circumstance Fund + aggregate paid by LLGAFF).  

D. “Agreement” is this State-Subdivision Agreement. 

E. “De minimis-share Local Government” is a Participating Local 
Government whose Final Allocation Percentage is less than the 
percentage defined below: 

1. For the Distributor and Janssen National Opioid Settlements, 
less than 0.0023%. 

2. For the Allergan, Teva, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Walmart, and 
Walgreens National Opioid Settlements, less than 0.0083%. 

3. For the Kroger Settlement and Generic Manufacturer National 
Opioid Settlements, less than 0.0011%. 

F. “Final Allocation Percentage” is a Participating Local Government’s 
Allocation Percentage as modified by the Litigation Adjustment. 
Attached as Exhibit A is the Final Allocation Percentage for each Local 
Government for each Settlement. 

G. “Litigating Local Government Attorneys” are the law firms who were 
retained by the Litigating Local Governments. 

H. “Litigating Local Government Attorney Fee Fund” (“LLGAFF”) is an 
adjustable percentage of the Local Government Share set aside for 
Projected Attorney Fee installment payments.  

I. “Litigating Local Governments” are the entities indicated as litigating 
in Exhibit C of this Agreement. 

J. “Litigation Adjustment” is an adjustment applied to the Preliminary 
Allocation Percentage. 

K. “Local Government Share” is the portion of the Settlement Payments 
payable to Participating Local Governments pursuant to this State-
Subdivision Agreement. 

L. “Local Governments” are the entities located within the geographic 
boundaries of the State of Michigan and identified in the Exhibits that 
identify the litigating and eligible Local Governments in each of the 
Settlements. 

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Page 3 of 13 

M. “National Contingency Fee Fund” are the individual Contingency Fee 
Funds established in the Settlements to compensate Litigating Local 
Government Attorneys.   

N. “National Fund Administrator” is the Settlement Fund Administrator 
as defined by the Settlements. 

O. “Neutral Special Master” is an independent mediator selected by the 
State.   

P. “Opioid Remediation” is the term as defined by the Settlements.   

Q. “Participating Local Governments” are the Local Governments who 
have signed a Participation Agreement for an individual Settlement.  

R. “Parties” are the State and the Litigating Local Governments.  The 
singular word “Party” shall mean either the State or Litigating Local 
Governments. 

S. “Pharmaceutical Entities” are the “Released Entities” as defined by 
each individual Settlement. 

T. “Preliminary Allocation Percentage” is the percentage listed for a Local 
Government in Exhibit B of this agreement. 

U. “Projected Attorney Fees” are the anticipated contingent fees paid to a 
Litigating Local Government Attorney for work performed for a 
Litigating Local Government for each individual Settlement and 
associated litigation, based on a Litigating Local Government’s 
Projected Total Recovery.  This does not include any fee payments for 
common benefit work as defined by the Settlements. 

V. “Projected Total Recovery” is the aggregated monetary recovery that 
an individual Litigating Local Government is projected to receive 
based on that Litigating Local Government’s Final Allocation 
Percentage and aggregate Local Government Share less the aggregate 
amounts for the Administrative Fund and Special Circumstance Fund. 
For the avoidance of doubt, this may be expressed mathematically as 
Projected Total Recovery = Final Allocation Percentage x (Local 
Government Share – aggregate Administrative Fund – aggregate 
Special Circumstance Fund). 

W. “Reporting Local Governments” are the Local Governments identified 
in Exhibit D of this Agreement. 

X. “Settlements” are the following individual national opioid settlements: 

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Page 4 of 13 

1. Allergan National Opioid Settlement, 

2. CVS National Opioid Settlement, 

3. Distributors National Opioid Settlement, 

4. Janssen National Opioid Settlement 

5. Kroger National Opioid Settlement, 

6. Purdue/Sackler National Opioid Settlement 

7. Generic Manufacturer National Opioid Settlements, which 
includes: 

a. Alvogen National Opioid Settlement 

b. Amneal National Opioid Settlement 

c. Apotex National Opioid Settlement 

d. Hikma National Opioid Settlement 

e. Indivior National Opioid Settlement 

f. Mylan National Opioid Settlement 

g. Sun Pharmaceutical National Opioid Settlement 

h. Zydus National Opioid Settlement  

8. Teva National Opioid Settlement, 

9. Walgreens National Opioid Settlement 

10. Walmart National Opioid Settlement 

Y. “Settlement Payments” are scheduled monetary payments received 
through the Settlements.  

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Page 5 of 13 

Z. “Special Circumstance Fund” is 5% of the Local Government Share for 
each applicable Settlement.  

AA. “State” is the State of Michigan acting through its Attorney General or 
designees. 

BB. “State Share” is the portion of the Settlement Payments payable to the 
State pursuant to this State-Subdivision Agreement. 

II. Terms 

1. Participation in Settlements: The Parties agree that to participate in 
the Settlements, Local Governments must execute a Participation 
Agreement. 

2. Opioid Remediation: All Settlement Payments shall be utilized by 
Participating Local Governments and the State for Opioid 
Remediation, except as otherwise allowed by the Settlements.  A 
minimum of 70% of Settlement Payments must be used solely for 
future Opioid Remediation.  

3. Distribution:  

 Settlement Payments are allocated as follows: 

• 50% of Settlement Payments to the Local Government Share 

• 50% of Settlement Payments to the State Share 

4. Local Government Share Offset: Prior to Participating Local 
Governments receiving their Final Allocation Percentage of the Local 
Government Share, amounts will be deducted for the following funds: 

For the Allergan, CVS, Distributor, Janssen, Purdue/Sackler, Generic 
Manufacturer, Teva, Walgreens, and Walmart National Opioid 
Settlements: 

• Administrative Fund 

• Litigating Local Government Attorney Fee Fund 

• Special Circumstance Fund 

For the Kroger National Opioid Settlement: 

• Litigating Local Government Attorney Fee Fund 

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Page 6 of 13 

5. Litigation Adjustment: The Parties recognize that the Litigating Local 
Governments expended time, resources, and assumed risk in the 
pursuit of litigation against the Pharmaceutical Entities.  Exhibit C of 
this Agreement provides a list of Litigating Local Governments and 
the year in which they filed suit.  In recognition of their commitment 
and contribution, the Litigating Local Governments are entitled to a 
Litigation Adjustment of an additional percentage of their Preliminary 
Allocation Percentage, as follows:  

For the Distributor and Janssen National Opioid Settlements: 

• 16% Litigation Adjustment for Litigating Local Governments 
that served as a bellwether or filed suit in 2017 

• 12% Litigation Adjustment for Litigating Local Governments 
that filed suit in 2018 

• 8% Litigation Adjustment for Litigating Local Governments that 
filed suit in 2019 

For the Allergan, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Teva, Walgreens, and 
Walmart National Opioid Settlements: 

• 12% Litigation Adjustment 

For the Kroger and Generic Manufacturer National Opioid 
Settlements: 

• 10% Litigation Adjustment 

6. Accelerated Participation Payments: Prior to the distribution of the 
State Share, the National Fund Administrator shall allocate the 
Projected Total Recovery for all De minimis-share Local Governments 
from the State Share to those De minimis-share Local Governments.  
This allocation shall be made in the first Settlement Payment.  In 
subsequent Settlement Payments, the National Fund Administrator 
shall direct distributions of all De minimis-share Local Governments to 
the State Share.    

7. Non-Participant Reallocation: If a non-county Local Government does 
not participate in the Settlement, then that non-county Local 
Government’s share shall revert to the county(ies) in which it is 
located.  If a county Local Government does not participate in the 
Settlements, that county’s share shall be reallocated to the 
Participating Local Governments.  

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Page 7 of 13 

8. Litigation Costs: To the extent that Litigating Local Government 
Attorneys receive cost reimbursement from the National Contingency 
Fee Fund, then such reimbursed costs shall be deducted from any 
remaining entitlement to costs as provided under individual retention 
agreements.  

9. Attorney Fees:  

a. Attorney fee payments may be paid from the LLGAFF, but only 
in years where Settlement Payments to the Local Government 
Share are greater than $0.00. 

b. To the extent that the LLGAF is drawn upon for paying a 
portion of a Litigating Local Government’s attorney fees for any 
individual Settlement, Projected Attorney Fees for that 
Settlement shall be calculated as 15% of an individual Litigating 
Local Government’s Projected Total Recovery.   

c. Projected Attorney Fees shall be paid by installments intended 
to minimize the amount of variability in payments to local 
governments.  In no event shall the number of installments 
exceed (i) the first seven Settlement Payments; or (ii) the total 
number of Settlement Payments.   

d. Litigating Local Government Attorneys must apply to the 
respective National Contingency Fee Fund for each Settlement 
and seek the maximum allowable contribution to their fee.  To 
the extent that a Litigating Local Government Attorney applies 
to a National Attorney Contingency Fee Fund and that National 
Attorney Contingency Fee Fund does not pay the full Projected 
Attorney Fee installment payment, the LLGAFF shall pay the 
deficiency for that installment.  If a Litigating Local 
Government Attorney does not apply to the National Attorney 
Contingency Fee Fund, the LLGAFF shall not pay any 
deficiency.  A Projected Attorney Fee payment from the 
LLGAFF may not exceed any restrictions in the respective 
national settlement agreement applicable to such payments that 
restrict the amount of settlement funds that may be allocable to 
non-Opioid Remediation purposes from each of those 
settlements. 

e. In instances where the LLGAF is drawn upon to pay a deficiency 
as set forth in paragraph 9.c, the sum of all deficiency payments 
for that respective settlement shall be no more than: 

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Page 8 of 13 

For the Allergan, CVS, Distributor, Janssen, Purdue/Sackler, 
Teva, Walgreens, and Walmart National Opioid Settlements: 
 

• 15% of the Litigating Local Government’s Projected Total 
Recovery 

 
For the Kroger and Generic Manufacturer National Opioid 
Settlements: 
 

• 5% of the Litigating Local Government’s Projected Total 
Recovery 

f. In instances where the LLGAF is drawn upon to pay a deficiency 
as set forth in paragraph 9.c, Actual Attorney Fees shall be no 
greater than 15% of a Litigating Local Government’s Actual 
Total Recovery.  In instances where the LLGAF is not drawn 
upon to pay a portion of contingent attorney fees, such fees shall 
be paid from the National Contingency Fee Fund as set forth 
under that Settlement with whatever restrictions are applicable 
to that Settlement. 

g. In instances where the LLGAF is drawn upon to pay a portion of 
attorney fees, if a Litigating Local Government’s Actual Total 
Recovery is less than the Projected Total Recovery, the 
Litigating Local Government Attorney shall return the amount 
received that is greater than 15% of the Litigating Local 
Government’s Actual Total Recovery. 

h. In instances where the LLGAF is drawn upon to pay a portion of 
attorney fees, the Parties shall endeavor to reconcile any timing 
discrepancies between fee payments from the National 
Contingency Fee Fund and the LLGAFF to assure payment of a 
15% Attorney Fee. 

10. Special Circumstance Fund:  

a. An application to receive additional funding for any local 
impact of the opioid epidemic that is not captured by a Local 
Government’s Allocation Percentage may be submitted to the 
Neutral Special Master for consideration.  The Neutral Special 
Master will decide the additional funding to be paid, if any, to 
all applicants on an application-by-application basis. The 
allocation decisions of the Neutral Special Master shall be final 
and not appealable. An application to the Special Circumstance 

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Page 9 of 13 

Fund may not be made with the express purpose of offsetting 
the Litigation Adjustment.   

b. Any additional funding allocated under this paragraph shall 
only be paid from the Special Circumstance Fund. 

c. The Neutral Special Master shall be paid solely from the 
Administrative Fund.   

d. The deadline for initial applications to the Allergan, CVS, 
Distributors, Janssen, Teva, Walgreens, and Walmart Special 
Circumstance Fund occurred on November 10, 2023.  
Applications were reviewed and an allocation determination 
was made by the Neutral Special Master.  These Special 
Circumstance Fund allocation determinations expire after 
2030. 

e. An application period for the Purdue/Sackler and Generic 
Manufacturer Special Circumstance Fund shall be available in 
2026 or 2027.  The specific application deadline shall be 
determined by the Michigan Department of Attorney General.  
Notice of the deadline shall be provided to all Participating 
Local Government at least two months prior to the deadline. 

f. An additional application for all Settlements where the Special 
Circumstance Fund offset is applicable shall be available in 
2030.  Any allocation decision shall apply to Special 
Circumstance Funds withheld in 2031 and shall continue to 
apply to Special Circumstance Funds withheld from the 
remaining Settlement Payments for each Settlement. The 
specific application deadline shall be determined by the 
Michigan Department of Attorney General.  Notice of the 
deadline shall be provided to all Participating Local 
Government at least two months prior to the deadline. 

g. Attorney fees may be assessed on a Special Circumstance Fund 
allocation.  To the extent that an attorney asserts a contingency 
fee interest upon a Special Circumstance fund allocation, that 
fee interest shall be capped at 15% of the fund allocation.  
Payment of attorney fees for a Special Circumstance fund 
allocation are the responsibility of the Participating Local 
Subdivision. 

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Page 10 of 13 

11. Allocation of Remaining Local Government Share: The remainder of 
the Local Government Share after offsets shall be distributed to 
Participating Local Governments in accordance with each 
Participating Local Government’s Final Allocation Percentage.  

12. Escrow Agent: An Escrow Agent shall be agreed upon by the State and 
a majority of the Litigating Local Governments to administer the 
distribution of the Local Government Share and all funds contained 
within it pursuant to this State-Subdivision Agreement.  The Escrow 
Agent shall be entitled to a reasonable fee for their services, which 
shall be paid solely from the Administrative Fund.  Alternatively, the 
Parties may explore whether the Escrow Agent’s role can be fulfilled by 
the Settlement Fund Administrator as that term is defined in the 
Settlements. 

13. Reversion to Local Government Share: 

a. Any amounts remaining in the Administrative Fund shall 
remain in such fund until all anticipated administrative costs 
associated with implementation of this agreement have been 
paid, after which any remaining funds may revert to the Local 
Government Share for distribution to Participating Local 
Governments in accordance with their Final Allocation 
Percentage applicable to the Settlement from which the money 
was withheld. 

b. Any portion of the Special Circumstance Fund withheld from 
each Settlement that is unallocated by the Neutral Special 
Master shall revert to the Local Government Share for 
distribution to Participating Local Governments, in accordance 
with their Final Allocation Percentage applicable to that 
Settlement. 

c. Any amounts remaining in the LLGAFF after paying the 
Projected Attorney Fee annual installment payment shall revert 
to the Local Government Share for distribution to Participating 
Local Governments in accordance with their Final Allocation 
Percentage applicable to the Settlement from which the money 
was withheld.  Any amount reverted to the Local Government 
Share shall be distributed no later than the next Settlement 
Payment. 

 

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Page 11 of 13 

14. Use and Reporting of Settlement Fund Expenditures for Opioid 
Remediation: 

To provide greater certainty in what proposed uses of Settlement 
Funds qualify as Opioid Remediation, and to provide greater 
coordination and transparency of the uses of such funds, the Parties 
agree as follows: 

a. At the request of a Participating Local Government, or on its 
own accord, the Michigan Department of Attorney General may 
issue generalized guidance about the Settlements, this 
Agreement, or whether proposed expenditures of Settlement 
Payments qualify as Opioid Remediation. Issuance of 
generalized guidance is solely within the discretion of the 
Michigan Department of Attorney General. 

b. Starting with Fiscal Year 2026, the State, and Reporting Local 
Governments that receive Settlement Payments under any of 
the Settlements shall provide documentation sufficient to show 
the receipt and expenditure of such funds.  Such documentation 
may take one of two forms: 

i) The State or Reporting Local Government may produce 
an annual fiscal year report, similar in form to Exhibit F, 
which states a. how much money they have received from 
Settlement Payments in the fiscal year, b. how much 
money from Settlement Payments they have spent or 
allocated in the fiscal year, and c. a description of where 
the Settlement Payments were allocated to or what the 
Settlement Payments were spent on; or 

 
ii) As an alternative to production of an annual fiscal year 

report, the State or Reporting Local Government may 
produce budgeting and accounting documents that are 
sufficient to identify the items listed above.  

 
The State and Reporting Local Governments shall provide such 
documents on an annual basis, at minimum.  A report is not 
necessary if a Reporting Local Government voluntarily assigns 
100% of its share to other Participating Local Governments.  
The State may provide the necessary information via webpage. 
Reporting Local Governments may provide their report 
electronically. 

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Page 12 of 13 

c. The State and Participating Local Governments may make 
requests for additional information about an expenditure or 
allocation. Requests to the State for additional information shall 
be directed to the Department of Attorney General. 

III. Other Terms and Conditions 

1. Governing Law and Venue: This agreement will be governed by the 
laws of the State of Michigan.  Any and all litigation arising under the 
Settlements or this Agreement, unless otherwise specified in this 
Agreement, will be instituted in either: (a) the Court that enters the 
Order if the matter deals with a matter covered by the Order and the 
Court retains jurisdiction; or (b) the appropriate state court in 
Michigan. 

2. Modification: This agreement may only be modified by a written 
amendment between the appropriate Parties.  No promises or 
agreements made after the execution of this agreement shall be 
binding unless expressly reduced to writing and signed by the Parties.   

3. Execution in Counterparts: This agreement may be executed in any 
number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an 
original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument.  

4. Assignment: The rights granted in this agreement may not be assigned 
or transferred by any Party without the prior written approval of the 
other Party.  No Party shall be permitted to delegate its 
responsibilities or obligations under this agreement without the prior 
written approval of the other Parties. 

5. Additional Documents: The Parties agree to cooperate fully and 
execute any and all supplementary documents and to take all 
additional actions which may be reasonably necessary or appropriate 
to give full force and effect to the basic terms and intent of this 
agreement. 

6. Captions: The captions contained in this agreement are for 
convenience only and shall in no way define, limit, extend, or describe 
the scope of this agreement or any part of it. 

7. Entire Agreement: This agreement, including any attachments, 
embodies the entire agreement of the Parties.  There are no other 
provisions, terms, conditions, or obligations.  This agreement 
supersedes all previous oral or written communications, 
representations, or agreements on this subject. 

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Page 13 of 13 

8. Construction: The Parties mutually acknowledge and represent that 
they have been fully advised by their respective legal counsel of their 
rights and responsibilities under this agreement, that they have read, 
know, and understand completely the contents of this Agreement, and 
that they have voluntarily executed the same.  The Parties further 
mutually acknowledge that they have had input into the drafting of 
this agreement and that, accordingly, in any construction to be made of 
this agreement, it shall not be construed for or against any Party, but 
rather shall be given a fair and reasonable interpretation, based on the 
plain language of the agreement and the expressed intent of the 
Parties.   

9. Capacity to Execute Agreement: The Parties represent and warrant 
that the individuals signing this agreement on their behalf are duly 
authorized and fully competent to do so. 

10. Effectiveness: This agreement shall become effective on the date on 
which the last signature necessary to meet the requirements set forth 
in the Settlements is affixed to this agreement. 

 

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-1: Final Allocation Percentage for Distributors and Janssen
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government
Distributor and Janssen

Final Allocation Percentage

Ada Township 0.0041016955%
Adrian City 0.0318335432%
Alcona County 0.0934630120%
Alger County 0.0879526161%
Algoma Township 0.0016436045%
Allegan County 0.4327148528%
Allen Park City 0.0601942865%
Allendale Charter Township 0.0043561388%
Alpena County 0.3552568075%
Alpine Charter Township 0.0014241321%
Ann Arbor City 0.2594452998%
Antrim County 0.2666726546%
Antwerp Township 0.0007355534%
Arenac County 0.1805504891%
Auburn Hills City 0.0659163711%
Bangor Charter Township 0.0061189832%
Baraga County 0.0830046065%
Barry County 0.2425000193%
Bath Charter Township 0.0301307953%
Battle Creek City 0.1917564588%
Bay City 0.0642866795%
Bay County 1.1889744773%
Bedford Township 0.0231086673%
Benton Charter Township 0.0508131806%
Benzie County 0.1559709002%
Berkley City 0.0201037399%
Berrien County 1.4353012866%
Beverly Hills Village 0.0257660336%
Big Rapids City 0.0137263834%
Birmingham City 0.0577450060%
Blackman Charter Township 0.0000000000%
Bloomfield Charter Township 0.1341703863%
Branch County 0.3823020966%
Brandon Charter Township 0.0167167533%
Brighton Township 0.0005670107%

Exhibit A - Final Allocation Percentages

Exhibit A-1
1 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-1: Final Allocation Percentage for Distributors and Janssen
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government
Distributor and Janssen

Final Allocation Percentage

Brownstown Charter Township 0.0579821158%
Burton City 0.0185856758%
Byron Township 0.0080424445%
Cadillac City 0.0555690910%
Caledonia Charter Township 0.0025848973%
Calhoun County 1.7844566727%
Cannon Township 0.0031018767%
Canton Charter Township 0.2635381672%
Cascade Charter Township 0.0113589166%
Cass County 0.4127455392%
Charlevoix County 0.2142858041%
Cheboygan County 0.3054123138%
Chesterfield Charter Township 0.1183364667%
Chippewa County 0.2775927323%
Clare County 0.2624296608%
Clawson City 0.0130752231%
Clinton Charter Township 0.6524317943%
Clinton County 0.5402669012%
Coldwater City 0.0072438662%
Commerce Charter Township 0.0186388163%
Comstock Charter Township 0.0079220184%
Cooper Charter Township 0.0008989520%
Crawford County 0.2886253251%
Davison Township 0.0082901645%
Dearborn City 0.2808727222%
Dearborn Heights City 0.0987568625%
Delhi Charter Township 0.0184418634%
Delta Charter Township 0.0380115648%
Delta County 0.2697502485%
Detroit City 7.3863551292%
Detroit Wayne Mental Health Authority 0.0000000000%
Dewitt Charter Township 0.0344650518%
Dickinson County 0.2772929170%
East Bay Township 0.0013728560%
East Grand Rapids City 0.0194355013%
East Lansing City 0.1928773141%
Eastpointe City 0.1572102867%
Eaton County 1.0040382409%

Exhibit A-1
2 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-1: Final Allocation Percentage for Distributors and Janssen
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government
Distributor and Janssen

Final Allocation Percentage

Egelston Township 0.0055491844%
Emmet County 0.1699583348%
Emmett Charter Township 0.0076288033%
Escanaba City 0.0187485878%
Farmington City 0.0206439955%
Farmington Hills City 0.1547676289%
Fenton Charter Township 0.0017365497%
Fenton City 0.0449540568%
Ferndale City 0.0835266239%
Flat Rock City 0.0161012939%
Flint Charter Township 0.0239721604%
Flint City 2.8492835414%
Flushing Charter Township 0.0035084585%
Fort Gratiot Charter Township 0.0088497409%
Fraser City 0.0750697912%
Frenchtown Charter Township 0.0458193199%
Fruitport Charter Township 0.0121166953%
Gaines Township, Kent County 0.0084277406%
Garden City 0.0337646978%
Garfield Charter Township 0.0003811636%
Genesee Charter Township 0.0121346244%
Genesee County 2.1326060463%
Genoa Township 0.0000708763%
Georgetown Charter Township 0.0067511546%
Gladwin County 0.2015504737%
Gogebic County 0.0699910567%
Grand Blanc Charter Township 0.0196679122%
Grand Haven Charter Township 0.0105692799%
Grand Haven City 0.0325929755%
Grand Rapids Charter Township 0.0035213129%
Grand Rapids City 1.3440310108%
Grand Traverse County 0.9563580623%
Grandville City 0.0260586909%
Gratiot County 0.3525172203%
Green Oak Township 0.0301528195%
Grosse Ile Township 0.0200793237%
Grosse Pointe Park City 0.0265363249%
Grosse Pointe Woods City 0.0189101571%

Exhibit A-1
3 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-1: Final Allocation Percentage for Distributors and Janssen
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government
Distributor and Janssen

Final Allocation Percentage

Hamburg Township 0.0318032257%
Hamtramck City 0.1014493061%
Harper Woods City 0.0283167391%
Harrison Charter Township 0.1197690449%
Hartland Township 0.0002733802%
Hazel Park City 0.0412412381%
Highland Charter Township 0.0164881836%
Highland Park City 0.0219276410%
Hillsdale County 0.4179678350%
Holland Charter Township 0.0163398631%
Holland City 0.0927438767%
Holly Township 0.0022960861%
Houghton County 0.2492720157%
Huron Charter Township 0.0404726923%
Huron County 0.1640912378%
Independence Charter Township 0.0462282123%
Ingham County 2.3910807430%
Inkster City 0.0935029696%
Ionia City 0.0251632893%
Ionia County 0.5298087066%
Iosco County 0.3597973006%
Iron County 0.1234778975%
Iron Mountain City 0.0102890430%
Isabella County 0.6406629239%
Jackson City 0.1975961131%
Jackson County 0.6079955625%
Kalamazoo Charter Township 0.0291373061%
Kalamazoo City 0.2121191546%
Kalamazoo County 2.1433248383%
Kalkaska County 0.0922123320%
Kent County 3.0032920161%
Kentwood City 0.0797172568%
Keweenaw County 0.0037904729%
Lake County 0.0815750848%
Lansing City 0.6157260773%
Lapeer County 0.4434165047%
Leelanau County 0.1385869500%
Lenawee County 0.8823792954%

Exhibit A-1
4 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-1: Final Allocation Percentage for Distributors and Janssen
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government
Distributor and Janssen

Final Allocation Percentage

Lenox Township 0.0062683460%
Leoni Township 0.0050926306%
Lincoln Charter Township 0.0099963665%
Lincoln Park City 0.0889864469%
Livingston County 1.4441660503%
Livonia City 0.4479740966%
Luce County 0.0715137352%
Lyon Charter Township 0.0033765972%
Mackinac County 0.0509418590%
Macomb County 8.9600726785%
Macomb Township 0.0605974123%
Madison Heights City 0.0808305409%
Manistee County 0.3495468254%
Marion Township, Livingston County 0.0001113771%
Marquette City 0.0175573465%
Marquette County 0.6035274193%
Mason County 0.2785770312%
Mecosta County 0.1860240300%
Melvindale City 0.0291074974%
Menominee County 0.0885034586%
Meridian Charter Township 0.0396555339%
Midland City 0.1693176181%
Midland County 0.3015890091%
Milford Charter Township 0.0035999720%
Missaukee County 0.0561661629%
Monitor Charter Township 0.0024741595%
Monroe Charter Township 0.0067058526%
Monroe City 0.1177263374%
Monroe County 1.7767050856%
Montcalm County 0.6957834128%
Montmorency County 0.0985848161%
Mount Clemens City 0.0281724875%
Mount Morris Charter Township 0.0139454462%
Mount Pleasant City 0.0200386139%
Mundy Charter Township 0.0084457765%
Muskegon Charter Township 0.0202116759%
Muskegon City 0.0979131952%
Muskegon County 1.9100374032%

Exhibit A-1
5 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-1: Final Allocation Percentage for Distributors and Janssen
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government
Distributor and Janssen

Final Allocation Percentage

Muskegon Heights City 0.0280295137%
New Baltimore City 0.0269087835%
Newaygo County 0.5231812721%
Niles City 0.0326704621%
Niles Township 0.0120613306%
Northville Charter Township 0.0937410512%
Norton Shores City 0.0393083517%
Novi City 0.0820980636%
Oak Park City 0.0581242238%
Oakland Charter Township 0.0153661144%
Oakland County 6.0626288797%
Oceana County 0.2437642147%
Oceola Township 0.0002025038%
Ogemaw County 0.6231253016%
Ontonagon County 0.0564870884%
Orion Charter Township 0.0271426463%
Osceola County 0.2155121864%
Oscoda County 0.0549836791%
Oshtemo Charter Township 0.0069668831%
Otsego County 0.3179205988%
Ottawa County 0.8305826515%
Owosso City 0.0336270349%
Oxford Charter Township 0.0123583455%
Park Township, Ottawa County 0.0038875457%
Pittsfield Charter Township 0.0274648217%
Plainfield Charter Township 0.0082472855%
Plymouth Charter Township 0.0346718756%
Pontiac City 0.3248499927%
Port Huron Charter Township 0.0080840993%
Port Huron City 0.1459483395%
Portage City 0.0550102932%
Presque Isle County 0.1629846795%
Redford Charter Township 0.1187245983%
Riverview City 0.0270311528%
Rochester City 0.0223582679%
Rochester Hills City 0.0378542514%
Romulus City 0.1043054582%
Roscommon County 0.4301836680%

Exhibit A-1
6 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-1: Final Allocation Percentage for Distributors and Janssen
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government
Distributor and Janssen

Final Allocation Percentage

Roseville City 0.2393507823%
Royal Oak City 0.1454014679%
Saginaw Charter Township 0.0387602955%
Saginaw City 0.2412683402%
Saginaw County 1.8697505971%
Sanilac County 0.3884585223%
Sault Ste. Marie City 0.1102861730%
Schoolcraft County 0.0442223898%
Scio Charter Township 0.0028859904%
Shelby Charter Township 0.2837106553%
Shiawassee County 0.8126041030%
South Lyon City 0.0145037834%
Southfield City 0.2203463403%
Southfield Township 0.0000623372%
Southgate City 0.0497592554%
Spring Lake Township 0.0058226535%
Springfield Charter Township 0.0025038767%
St Clair County 2.2355271010%
St Joseph County 0.2389148728%
St. Clair Shores City 0.1903773935%
Sterling Heights City 1.0160157647%
Sturgis City 0.0335669383%
Summit Township, Jackson County 0.0082457610%
Superior Charter Township 0.0067902872%
Taylor City 0.2108595037%
Texas Charter Township 0.0029159787%
Thomas Township 0.0071194604%
Traverse City 0.0694748751%
Trenton City 0.0269874880%
Troy City 0.1321911809%
Tuscola County 0.4964109876%
Tyrone Township, Livingston County 0.0053967269%
Union Charter Township 0.0000286906%
Van Buren Charter Township 0.0769291491%
Van Buren County 0.4272870593%
Vienna Charter Township, Genesee County 0.0048418225%
Walker City 0.0323258475%
Warren City 1.2684338717%

Exhibit A-1
7 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-1: Final Allocation Percentage for Distributors and Janssen
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government
Distributor and Janssen

Final Allocation Percentage

Washington Township, Macomb County 0.0453026297%
Washtenaw County 2.6615292034%
Waterford Charter Township 0.1224458021%
Wayne City 0.0938477712%
Wayne County 11.8162081894%
West Bloomfield Charter Township 0.1468923654%
Westland City 0.3653116491%
Wexford County 0.3345381450%
White Lake Charter Township 0.0327893557%
Wixom City 0.0206907484%
Woodhaven City 0.0320328001%
Wyandotte City 0.0547075346%
Wyoming City 0.1430716261%
Ypsilanti Charter Township 0.0324173179%
Ypsilanti City 0.0503291142%
Zeeland Charter Township 0.0034449878%

Total 100.0000000000%

Exhibit A-1
8 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-2: Final Allocation Percentages for Allergan, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Teva, Walgreens, and Walmart
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government

Allergan, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Teva, 
Walgreens, and Walmart

Final Allocation Percentage

Ada Township 0.0043760292%
Adrian City 0.0339626660%
Alcona County 0.0934630120%
Alger County 0.0879526161%
Algoma Township 0.0017535337%
Allegan County 0.4616561194%
Allen Park City 0.0642202609%
Allendale Charter Township 0.0046474905%
Alpena County 0.3552568075%
Alpine Charter Township 0.0015193823%
Ann Arbor City 0.2767977793%
Antrim County 0.2666726546%
Antwerp Township 0.0007847494%
Arenac County 0.1805504891%
Auburn Hills City 0.0703250556%
Bangor Charter Township 0.0065282392%
Baraga County 0.0830046065%
Barry County 0.2587191476%
Bath Charter Township 0.0321460332%
Battle Creek City 0.2045817057%
Bay City 0.0685863654%
Bay County 1.2330105691%
Bedford Township 0.0246542442%
Benton Charter Township 0.0542117185%
Benzie County 0.1559709002%
Berkley City 0.0214483383%
Berrien County 1.4353012866%
Beverly Hills Village 0.0274893432%
Big Rapids City 0.0146444451%
Birmingham City 0.0616071651%
Blackman Charter Township 0.0000000000%
Bloomfield Charter Township 0.1431441040%
Branch County 0.3823020966%
Brandon Charter Township 0.0178348199%

Exhibit A - Final Allocation Percentages

Exhibit A-2
1 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-2: Final Allocation Percentages for Allergan, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Teva, Walgreens, and Walmart
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government

Allergan, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Teva, 
Walgreens, and Walmart

Final Allocation Percentage

Brighton Township 0.0006049341%
Brownstown Charter Township 0.0618601336%
Burton City 0.0198287415%
Byron Township 0.0085803473%
Cadillac City 0.0592857184%
Caledonia Charter Township 0.0027577830%
Calhoun County 1.8505476605%
Cannon Township 0.0033093395%
Canton Charter Township 0.2635381672%
Cascade Charter Township 0.0121186350%
Cass County 0.4127455392%
Charlevoix County 0.2142858041%
Cheboygan County 0.3167238809%
Chesterfield Charter Township 0.1262511644%
Chippewa County 0.2680205692%
Clare County 0.2799817433%
Clawson City 0.0139497332%
Clinton Charter Township 0.6524317943%
Clinton County 0.5402669012%
Coldwater City 0.0077283577%
Commerce Charter Township 0.0198854362%
Comstock Charter Township 0.0084518668%
Cooper Charter Township 0.0009590766%
Crawford County 0.2886253251%
Davison Township 0.0088446355%
Dearborn City 0.2996583319%
Dearborn Heights City 0.1053620175%
Delhi Charter Township 0.0196753105%
Delta Charter Township 0.0405538922%
Delta County 0.2604485158%
Detroit City 7.1316532282%
Detroit Wayne Mental Health Authority 0.0000000000%
Dewitt Charter Township 0.0367701778%
Dickinson County 0.2772929170%
East Bay Township 0.0014646767%
East Grand Rapids City 0.0207354059%
East Lansing City 0.1928773141%

Exhibit A-2
2 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-2: Final Allocation Percentages for Allergan, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Teva, Walgreens, and Walmart
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government

Allergan, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Teva, 
Walgreens, and Walmart

Final Allocation Percentage

Eastpointe City 0.1677249820%
Eaton County 1.0040382409%
Egelston Township 0.0059203305%
Emmet County 0.1813256578%
Emmett Charter Township 0.0081390406%
Escanaba City 0.0181020848%
Farmington City 0.0220247278%
Farmington Hills City 0.1651189520%
Fenton Charter Township 0.0018526954%
Fenton City 0.0479607189%
Ferndale City 0.0891131349%
Flat Rock City 0.0171781967%
Flint Charter Township 0.0255754903%
Flint City 2.9548125615%
Flushing Charter Township 0.0037431147%
Fort Gratiot Charter Township 0.0094416381%
Fraser City 0.0800906838%
Frenchtown Charter Township 0.0488838534%
Fruitport Charter Township 0.0129270962%
Gaines Township, Kent County 0.0089914131%
Garden City 0.0360229820%
Garfield Charter Township 0.0004066570%
Genesee Charter Township 0.0129462245%
Genesee County 2.0590679068%
Genoa Township 0.0000756167%
Georgetown Charter Township 0.0072026921%
Gladwin County 0.2150307736%
Gogebic County 0.0746722684%
Grand Blanc Charter Township 0.0209833611%
Grand Haven Charter Township 0.0112761850%
Grand Haven City 0.0347728914%
Grand Rapids Charter Township 0.0037568289%
Grand Rapids City 1.3440310108%
Grand Traverse County 0.9233801980%
Grandville City 0.0278015743%
Gratiot County 0.3525172203%
Green Oak Township 0.0321695305%

Exhibit A-2
3 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-2: Final Allocation Percentages for Allergan, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Teva, Walgreens, and Walmart
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government

Allergan, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Teva, 
Walgreens, and Walmart

Final Allocation Percentage

Grosse Ile Township 0.0214222891%
Grosse Pointe Park City 0.0283111539%
Grosse Pointe Woods City 0.0201749251%
Hamburg Township 0.0339303208%
Hamtramck City 0.1082345398%
Harper Woods City 0.0302106475%
Harrison Charter Township 0.1242049355%
Hartland Township 0.0002916646%
Hazel Park City 0.0439995757%
Highland Charter Township 0.0175909627%
Highland Park City 0.0233942274%
Hillsdale County 0.4179678350%
Holland Charter Township 0.0174327221%
Holland City 0.0989468652%
Holly Township 0.0024496552%
Houghton County 0.2492720157%
Huron Charter Township 0.0404726923%
Huron County 0.1750661517%
Independence Charter Township 0.0493200938%
Ingham County 2.3910807430%
Inkster City 0.0997567285%
Ionia City 0.0268462855%
Ionia County 0.5494312513%
Iosco County 0.3597973006%
Iron County 0.1234778975%
Iron Mountain City 0.0102890430%
Isabella County 0.6406629239%
Jackson City 0.1975961131%
Jackson County 0.6486601285%
Kalamazoo Charter Township 0.0310860965%
Kalamazoo City 0.2263063196%
Kalamazoo County 2.2227072398%
Kalkaska County 0.0983797692%
Kent County 3.1145250537%
Kentwood City 0.0850489860%
Keweenaw County 0.0040439910%
Lake County 0.0815750848%

Exhibit A-2
4 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-2: Final Allocation Percentages for Allergan, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Teva, Walgreens, and Walmart
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government

Allergan, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Teva, 
Walgreens, and Walmart

Final Allocation Percentage

Lansing City 0.5944941436%
Lapeer County 0.4730735299%
Leelanau County 0.1385869500%
Lenawee County 0.8823792954%
Lenox Township 0.0066875918%
Leoni Township 0.0054332410%
Lincoln Charter Township 0.0106649534%
Lincoln Park City 0.0949381273%
Livingston County 1.4976536818%
Livonia City 0.4479740966%
Luce County 0.0715137352%
Lyon Charter Township 0.0036024341%
Mackinac County 0.0543490033%
Macomb County 8.6511046551%
Macomb Township 0.0646503489%
Madison Heights City 0.0862367299%
Manistee County 0.3495468254%
Marion Township, Livingston County 0.0001188263%
Marquette City 0.0187316345%
Marquette County 0.6035274193%
Mason County 0.2785770312%
Mecosta County 0.1984658748%
Melvindale City 0.0310542941%
Menominee County 0.0944228353%
Meridian Charter Township 0.0423078149%
Midland City 0.1806420880%
Midland County 0.3217601862%
Milford Charter Township 0.0038407489%
Missaukee County 0.0599227243%
Monitor Charter Township 0.0026396387%
Monroe Charter Township 0.0071543602%
Monroe City 0.1256002278%
Monroe County 1.7154393930%
Montcalm County 0.6957834128%
Montmorency County 0.0985848161%
Mount Clemens City 0.0300567479%
Mount Morris Charter Township 0.0148781594%

Exhibit A-2
5 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-2: Final Allocation Percentages for Allergan, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Teva, Walgreens, and Walmart
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government

Allergan, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Teva, 
Walgreens, and Walmart

Final Allocation Percentage

Mount Pleasant City 0.0213788564%
Mundy Charter Township 0.0090106554%
Muskegon Charter Township 0.0215634933%
Muskegon City 0.1044619233%
Muskegon County 1.9100374032%
Muskegon Heights City 0.0299042116%
New Baltimore City 0.0287085237%
Newaygo County 0.5231812721%
Niles City 0.0348555605%
Niles Township 0.0128680285%
Northville Charter Township 0.0937410512%
Norton Shores City 0.0419374121%
Novi City 0.0875890282%
Oak Park City 0.0620117462%
Oakland Charter Township 0.0163938462%
Oakland County 5.8535727114%
Oceana County 0.2437642147%
Oceola Township 0.0002160479%
Ogemaw County 0.6231253016%
Ontonagon County 0.0564870884%
Orion Charter Township 0.0289580279%
Osceola County 0.2155121864%
Oscoda County 0.0586611524%
Oshtemo Charter Township 0.0074328492%
Otsego County 0.3179205988%
Ottawa County 0.8861345094%
Owosso City 0.0358761118%
Oxford Charter Township 0.0131849087%
Park Township, Ottawa County 0.0041475564%
Pittsfield Charter Township 0.0284820374%
Plainfield Charter Township 0.0087988887%
Plymouth Charter Township 0.0369908346%
Pontiac City 0.3368814739%
Port Huron Charter Township 0.0086247881%
Port Huron City 0.1557098020%
Portage City 0.0586895466%
Presque Isle County 0.1629846795%

Exhibit A-2
6 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-2: Final Allocation Percentages for Allergan, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Teva, Walgreens, and Walmart
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government

Allergan, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Teva, 
Walgreens, and Walmart

Final Allocation Percentage

Redford Charter Township 0.1266652554%
Riverview City 0.0288390774%
Rochester City 0.0238536559%
Rochester Hills City 0.0403860572%
Romulus City 0.1043054582%
Roscommon County 0.4301836680%
Roseville City 0.2553592802%
Royal Oak City 0.1551263540%
Saginaw Charter Township 0.0413527002%
Saginaw City 0.2574050901%
Saginaw County 1.8052764386%
Sanilac County 0.3884585223%
Sault Ste. Marie City 0.1102861730%
Schoolcraft County 0.0471801158%
Scio Charter Township 0.0030790141%
Shelby Charter Township 0.3026860745%
Shiawassee County 0.8126041030%
South Lyon City 0.0154738400%
Southfield City 0.2350837642%
Southfield Township 0.0000665064%
Southgate City 0.0530873036%
Spring Lake Township 0.0062120900%
Springfield Charter Township 0.0026713434%
St Clair County 2.2355271010%
St Joseph County 0.2548942158%
St. Clair Shores City 0.2031104044%
Sterling Heights City 1.0536459782%
Sturgis City 0.0358119958%
Summit Township, Jackson County 0.0087972622%
Superior Charter Township 0.0072444420%
Taylor City 0.2249624195%
Texas Charter Township 0.0031110081%
Thomas Township 0.0075956313%
Traverse City 0.0694748751%
Trenton City 0.0287924922%
Troy City 0.1410325234%
Tuscola County 0.4964109876%

Exhibit A-2
7 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-2: Final Allocation Percentages for Allergan, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Teva, Walgreens, and Walmart
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government

Allergan, CVS, Purdue/Sackler, Teva, 
Walgreens, and Walmart

Final Allocation Percentage

Tyrone Township, Livingston County 0.0057576762%
Union Charter Township 0.0000306095%
Van Buren Charter Township 0.0769291491%
Van Buren County 0.4558652989%
Vienna Charter Township, Genesee County 0.0051656581%
Walker City 0.0344878971%
Warren City 1.3154129040%
Washington Township, Macomb County 0.0483326054%
Washtenaw County 2.6615292034%
Waterford Charter Township 0.1306353444%
Wayne City 0.0938477712%
Wayne County 11.4087527346%
West Bloomfield Charter Township 0.1567169672%
Westland City 0.3653116491%
Wexford County 0.3345381450%
White Lake Charter Township 0.0349824061%
Wixom City 0.0220746076%
Woodhaven City 0.0341752498%
Wyandotte City 0.0583665385%
Wyoming City 0.1526406854%
Ypsilanti Charter Township 0.0345854854%
Ypsilanti City 0.0536952762%
Zeeland Charter Township 0.0036753989%

Total 100.0000000000%

Exhibit A-2
8 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-3: Final Allocation Percentages for Generic Manufacturers and Kroger
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government
Generic Manufacturers and Kroger

Final Allocation Percentage

Ada Township 0.0048672491%
Adrian City 0.0377750571%
Alcona County 0.0917940297%
Alger County 0.0863820337%
Algoma Township 0.0019503721%
Allegan County 0.5134781318%
Allen Park City 0.0714291400%
Allendale Charter Township 0.0051691825%
Alpena County 0.3489129359%
Alpine Charter Township 0.0016899367%
Ann Arbor City 0.3078689973%
Antrim County 0.2619106430%
Antwerp Township 0.0008728394%
Arenac County 0.1773263732%
Auburn Hills City 0.0782192126%
Bangor Charter Township 0.0072610498%
Baraga County 0.0815223814%
Barry County 0.2877609956%
Bath Charter Township 0.0357545030%
Battle Creek City 0.2275464953%
Bay City 0.0762853502%
Bay County 1.2109925232%
Bedford Township 0.0274217426%
Benton Charter Township 0.0602971146%
Benzie County 0.1531857055%
Berkley City 0.0238559660%
Berrien County 1.4096709065%
Beverly Hills Village 0.0305750883%
Big Rapids City 0.0162883194%
Birmingham City 0.0685227179%
Blackman Charter Township 0.0000000000%
Bloomfield Charter Township 0.1592123748%
Branch County 0.3754752735%
Brandon Charter Township 0.0198368214%
Brighton Township 0.0006728394%

Exhibit A - Final Allocation Percentages

Exhibit A-3
1 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-3: Final Allocation Percentages for Generic Manufacturers and Kroger
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government
Generic Manufacturers and Kroger

Final Allocation Percentage

Brownstown Charter Township 0.0688040827%
Burton City 0.0220545655%
Byron Township 0.0095435120%
Cadillac City 0.0659406832%
Caledonia Charter Township 0.0030673508%
Calhoun County 1.8175021666%
Cannon Township 0.0036808209%
Canton Charter Township 0.2588321285%
Cascade Charter Township 0.0134789810%
Cass County 0.4053750832%
Charlevoix County 0.2104592719%
Cheboygan County 0.3110680973%
Chesterfield Charter Township 0.1404231620%
Chippewa County 0.2632344876%
Clare County 0.3114103689%
Clawson City 0.0155156244%
Clinton Charter Township 0.6407812266%
Clinton County 0.5306192780%
Coldwater City 0.0085958845%
Commerce Charter Township 0.0221176243%
Comstock Charter Township 0.0094006092%
Cooper Charter Township 0.0010667353%
Crawford County 0.2834713014%
Davison Township 0.0098374672%
Dearborn City 0.3332957021%
Dearborn Heights City 0.1171891580%
Delhi Charter Township 0.0218839116%
Delta Charter Township 0.0451061644%
Delta County 0.2557976495%
Detroit City 7.0043022777%
Detroit Wayne Mental Health Authority 0.0000000000%
Dewitt Charter Township 0.0408977189%
Dickinson County 0.2723412578%
East Bay Township 0.0016290902%
East Grand Rapids City 0.0230630052%
East Lansing City 0.1894330764%
Eastpointe City 0.1865525155%
Eaton County 0.9861089866%

Exhibit A-3
2 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-3: Final Allocation Percentages for Generic Manufacturers and Kroger
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government
Generic Manufacturers and Kroger

Final Allocation Percentage

Egelston Township 0.0065849019%
Emmet County 0.2016799000%
Emmett Charter Township 0.0090526675%
Escanaba City 0.0177788333%
Farmington City 0.0244970566%
Farmington Hills City 0.1836539524%
Fenton Charter Township 0.0020606649%
Fenton City 0.0533444252%
Ferndale City 0.0991162992%
Flat Rock City 0.0191064907%
Flint Charter Township 0.0284464008%
Flint City 2.9020480514%
Flushing Charter Township 0.0041632884%
Fort Gratiot Charter Township 0.0105014847%
Fraser City 0.0890810562%
Frenchtown Charter Township 0.0543711838%
Fruitport Charter Township 0.0143781939%
Gaines Township, Kent County 0.0100007209%
Garden City 0.0400666486%
Garfield Charter Township 0.0004523052%
Genesee Charter Township 0.0143994694%
Genesee County 2.0222988370%
Genoa Township 0.0000841049%
Georgetown Charter Township 0.0080112116%
Gladwin County 0.2391684964%
Gogebic County 0.0830544105%
Grand Blanc Charter Township 0.0233387940%
Grand Haven Charter Township 0.0125419639%
Grand Haven City 0.0386762323%
Grand Rapids Charter Township 0.0041785420%
Grand Rapids City 1.3200304570%
Grand Traverse County 0.9068912659%
Grandville City 0.0309223680%
Gratiot County 0.3462222699%
Green Oak Township 0.0357806378%
Grosse Ile Township 0.0238269927%
Grosse Pointe Park City 0.0314891491%
Grosse Pointe Woods City 0.0224396090%

Exhibit A-3
3 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-3: Final Allocation Percentages for Generic Manufacturers and Kroger
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government
Generic Manufacturers and Kroger

Final Allocation Percentage

Hamburg Township 0.0377390811%
Hamtramck City 0.1203841279%
Harper Woods City 0.0336018655%
Harrison Charter Township 0.1219869902%
Hartland Township 0.0003244047%
Hazel Park City 0.0489386342%
Highland Charter Township 0.0195655907%
Highland Park City 0.0260202858%
Hillsdale County 0.4105041237%
Holland Charter Township 0.0193895872%
Holland City 0.1100538894%
Holly Township 0.0027246349%
Houghton County 0.2448207297%
Huron Charter Township 0.0397499656%
Huron County 0.1947177493%
Independence Charter Township 0.0548563932%
Ingham County 2.3483828726%
Inkster City 0.1109546618%
Ionia City 0.0298598458%
Ionia County 0.5396199789%
Iosco County 0.3533723488%
Iron County 0.1212729351%
Iron Mountain City 0.0101053101%
Isabella County 0.6292225146%
Jackson City 0.1940676111%
Jackson County 0.7214737917%
Kalamazoo Charter Township 0.0345755857%
Kalamazoo City 0.2517097496%
Kalamazoo County 2.1830160391%
Kalkaska County 0.1094231355%
Kent County 3.0589085349%
Kentwood City 0.0945959397%
Keweenaw County 0.0044979388%
Lake County 0.0801183868%
Lansing City 0.5838781768%
Lapeer County 0.5261771741%
Leelanau County 0.1361121830%
Lenawee County 0.8666225223%

Exhibit A-3
4 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-3: Final Allocation Percentages for Generic Manufacturers and Kroger
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government
Generic Manufacturers and Kroger

Final Allocation Percentage

Lenox Township 0.0074382901%
Leoni Township 0.0060431354%
Lincoln Charter Township 0.0118621201%
Lincoln Park City 0.1055951609%
Livingston County 1.4709098660%
Livonia City 0.4399745592%
Luce County 0.0702367042%
Lyon Charter Township 0.0040068160%
Mackinac County 0.0604498099%
Macomb County 8.4966206434%
Macomb Township 0.0719075065%
Madison Heights City 0.0959170107%
Manistee County 0.3433049178%
Marion Township, Livingston County 0.0001321649%
Marquette City 0.0208343056%
Marquette County 0.5927501439%
Mason County 0.2736024413%
Mecosta County 0.2207441477%
Melvindale City 0.0345402135%
Menominee County 0.1050220262%
Meridian Charter Township 0.0470569691%
Midland City 0.2009195979%
Midland County 0.3578785428%
Milford Charter Township 0.0042718823%
Missaukee County 0.0666491945%
Monitor Charter Township 0.0029359445%
Monroe Charter Township 0.0079574543%
Monroe City 0.1396991561%
Monroe County 1.6848065467%
Montcalm County 0.6833587090%
Montmorency County 0.0968243729%
Mount Clemens City 0.0334306903%
Mount Morris Charter Township 0.0165482687%
Mount Pleasant City 0.0237786846%
Mundy Charter Township 0.0100221232%
Muskegon Charter Township 0.0239840474%
Muskegon City 0.1161880260%
Muskegon County 1.8759295925%

Exhibit A-3
5 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-3: Final Allocation Percentages for Generic Manufacturers and Kroger
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government
Generic Manufacturers and Kroger

Final Allocation Percentage

Muskegon Heights City 0.0332610314%
New Baltimore City 0.0319311246%
Newaygo County 0.5138387494%
Niles City 0.0387681812%
Niles Township 0.0143124958%
Northville Charter Township 0.0920671038%
Norton Shores City 0.0466449877%
Novi City 0.0974211078%
Oak Park City 0.0689727142%
Oakland Charter Township 0.0182340949%
Oakland County 5.7490446273%
Oceana County 0.2394112823%
Oceola Township 0.0002402998%
Ogemaw County 0.6119980640%
Ontonagon County 0.0554783904%
Orion Charter Township 0.0322086363%
Osceola County 0.2116637545%
Oscoda County 0.0652460081%
Oshtemo Charter Township 0.0082672044%
Otsego County 0.3122434453%
Ottawa County 0.9856052443%
Owosso City 0.0399032918%
Oxford Charter Township 0.0146649465%
Park Township, Ottawa County 0.0046131297%
Pittsfield Charter Township 0.0279734296%
Plainfield Charter Township 0.0097865852%
Plymouth Charter Township 0.0411431450%
Pontiac City 0.3308657333%
Port Huron Charter Township 0.0095929414%
Port Huron City 0.1731886027%
Portage City 0.0652775897%
Presque Isle County 0.1600742388%
Redford Charter Township 0.1408837357%
Riverview City 0.0320763333%
Rochester City 0.0265312862%
Rochester Hills City 0.0449194895%
Romulus City 0.1024428607%
Roscommon County 0.4225018168%

Exhibit A-3
6 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-3: Final Allocation Percentages for Generic Manufacturers and Kroger
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government
Generic Manufacturers and Kroger

Final Allocation Percentage

Roseville City 0.2840239750%
Royal Oak City 0.1725396612%
Saginaw Charter Township 0.0459946405%
Saginaw City 0.2862994320%
Saginaw County 1.7730393593%
Sanilac County 0.3815217629%
Sault Ste. Marie City 0.1083167770%
Schoolcraft County 0.0524761976%
Scio Charter Township 0.0034246408%
Shelby Charter Township 0.3366633161%
Shiawassee County 0.7980933155%
South Lyon City 0.0172108158%
Southfield City 0.2614724834%
Southfield Township 0.0000739720%
Southgate City 0.0590464814%
Spring Lake Township 0.0069094121%
Springfield Charter Township 0.0029712082%
St Clair County 2.1956069742%
St Joseph County 0.2835067060%
St. Clair Shores City 0.2259100369%
Sterling Heights City 1.0348308715%
Sturgis City 0.0398319787%
Summit Township, Jackson County 0.0097847761%
Superior Charter Township 0.0080576481%
Taylor City 0.2502149934%
Texas Charter Township 0.0034602263%
Thomas Township 0.0084482592%
Traverse City 0.0682342524%
Trenton City 0.0320245188%
Troy City 0.1568637642%
Tuscola County 0.4875465057%
Tyrone Township, Livingston County 0.0064039892%
Union Charter Township 0.0000340455%
Van Buren Charter Township 0.0755554143%
Van Buren County 0.5070372777%
Vienna Charter Township, Genesee County 0.0057455156%
Walker City 0.0383592467%
Warren City 1.2919233878%

Exhibit A-3
7 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit A-3: Final Allocation Percentages for Generic Manufacturers and Kroger
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement

Local Government
Generic Manufacturers and Kroger

Final Allocation Percentage

Washington Township, Macomb County 0.0537580568%
Washtenaw County 2.6140018962%
Waterford Charter Township 0.1452994768%
Wayne City 0.0921719182%
Wayne County 11.2050250072%
West Bloomfield Charter Township 0.1743088246%
Westland City 0.3587882268%
Wexford County 0.3285642495%
White Lake Charter Township 0.0389092655%
Wixom City 0.0245525356%
Woodhaven City 0.0380115040%
Wyandotte City 0.0649183232%
Wyoming City 0.1697749703%
Ypsilanti Charter Township 0.0384677895%
Ypsilanti City 0.0597227004%
Zeeland Charter Township 0.0040879713%

Total 100.0000000000%

Exhibit A-3
8 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit B - Preliminary Allocation Percentage  
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement for Kroger Settlement

Local Government Preliminary Allocation Percentage
Ada Township 0.0073233482%
Adrian City 0.0568370128%
Alcona County 0.0834491179%
Alger County 0.0785291215%
Algoma Township 0.0029345640%
Allegan County 0.7725881935%
Allen Park City 0.1074735355%
Allendale Charter Township 0.0077776425%
Alpena County 0.3171935781%
Alpine Charter Township 0.0025427083%
Ann Arbor City 0.4632250874%
Antrim County 0.2381005845%
Antwerp Township 0.0013132895%
Arenac County 0.1612057938%
Auburn Hills City 0.1176899978%
Bangor Charter Township 0.0109251027%
Baraga County 0.0741112558%
Barry County 0.4329702358%
Bath Charter Township 0.0537968516%
Battle Creek City 0.3423704436%
Bay City 0.1147802745%
Bay County 1.1009022938%
Bedford Township 0.0412592343%
Benton Charter Township 0.0907240950%
Benzie County 0.1392597323%
Berkley City 0.0358941044%
Berrien County 1.2815190059%
Beverly Hills Village 0.0460038135%
Big Rapids City 0.0245076907%
Birmingham City 0.1031004819%
Blackman Charter Township 0.0000000000%
Bloomfield Charter Township 0.2395537286%
Branch County 0.3413411577%
Brandon Charter Township 0.0298468290%
Brighton Township 0.0010123659%

Exhibit B - Preliminary Allocation Percentage

Rev. 6-12-24 1 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit B - Preliminary Allocation Percentage  
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement for Kroger Settlement

Local Government Preliminary Allocation Percentage
Brownstown Charter Township 0.1035238283%
Burton City 0.0331836857%
Byron Township 0.0143593354%
Cadillac City 0.0992155073%
Caledonia Charter Township 0.0046151897%
Calhoun County 1.6522746969%
Cannon Township 0.0055382276%
Canton Charter Township 0.2353019350%
Cascade Charter Township 0.0202807109%
Cass County 0.3685228029%
Charlevoix County 0.1913266108%
Cheboygan County 0.2827891794%
Chesterfield Charter Township 0.2112831498%
Chippewa County 0.2393040796%
Clare County 0.4685534972%
Clawson City 0.0233450803%
Clinton Charter Township 0.5825283878%
Clinton County 0.4823811618%
Coldwater City 0.0129335184%
Commerce Charter Township 0.0332785651%
Comstock Charter Township 0.0141443213%
Cooper Charter Township 0.0016050286%
Crawford County 0.2577011831%
Davison Township 0.0148016255%
Dearborn City 0.5014825529%
Dearborn Heights City 0.1763248603%
Delhi Charter Township 0.0329269168%
Delta Charter Township 0.0678675252%
Delta County 0.2325433177%
Detroit City 6.3675475252%
Detroit Wayne Mental Health Authority 0.0000000000%
Dewitt Charter Township 0.0615354244%
Dickinson County 0.2475829616%
East Bay Township 0.0024511576%
East Grand Rapids City 0.0347010017%
East Lansing City 0.1722118876%
Eastpointe City 0.2806901834%
Eaton County 0.8964627151%
Egelston Township 0.0099077587%

Rev. 6-12-24 2 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit B - Preliminary Allocation Percentage  
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement for Kroger Settlement

Local Government Preliminary Allocation Percentage
Emmet County 0.3034511111%
Emmett Charter Township 0.0136208021%
Escanaba City 0.0161625757%
Farmington City 0.0368587005%
Farmington Hills City 0.2763289545%
Fenton Charter Township 0.0031005125%
Fenton City 0.0802629568%
Ferndale City 0.1491321203%
Flat Rock City 0.0287479606%
Flint Charter Township 0.0428009530%
Flint City 2.6382255013%
Flushing Charter Township 0.0062641566%
Fort Gratiot Charter Township 0.0158007179%
Fraser City 0.1340329179%
Frenchtown Charter Township 0.0818078358%
Fruitport Charter Township 0.0216336824%
Gaines Township, Kent County 0.0150472599%
Garden City 0.0602849815%
Garfield Charter Township 0.0006805464%
Genesee Charter Township 0.0216656939%
Genesee County 1.8384534882%
Genoa Township 0.0001265457%
Georgetown Charter Township 0.0120538094%
Gladwin County 0.3598571100%
Gogebic County 0.1249651212%
Grand Blanc Charter Township 0.0351159584%
Grand Haven Charter Township 0.0188708587%
Grand Haven City 0.0581929367%
Grand Rapids Charter Township 0.0062871075%
Grand Rapids City 1.2000276882%
Grand Traverse County 0.8244466054%
Grandville City 0.0465263367%
Gratiot County 0.3147475181%
Green Oak Township 0.0538361746%
Grosse Ile Township 0.0358505107%
Grosse Pointe Park City 0.0473791255%
Grosse Pointe Woods City 0.0337630289%
Hamburg Township 0.0567828826%
Hamtramck City 0.1811320680%

Rev. 6-12-24 3 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit B - Preliminary Allocation Percentage  
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement for Kroger Settlement

Local Government Preliminary Allocation Percentage
Harper Woods City 0.0505579556%
Harrison Charter Township 0.1108972638%
Hartland Township 0.0004881050%
Hazel Park City 0.0736339264%
Highland Charter Township 0.0294387306%
Highland Park City 0.0391505779%
Hillsdale County 0.3731855670%
Holland Charter Township 0.0291739126%
Holland City 0.1655890102%
Holly Township 0.0040995334%
Houghton County 0.2225642997%
Huron Charter Township 0.0361363324%
Huron County 0.2929757372%
Independence Charter Township 0.0825378903%
Ingham County 2.1348935205%
Inkster City 0.1669443281%
Ionia City 0.0449276471%
Ionia County 0.4905636172%
Iosco County 0.3212475898%
Iron County 0.1102481228%
Iron Mountain City 0.0091866455%
Isabella County 0.5720204678%
Jackson City 0.1764251010%
Jackson County 1.0855421077%
Kalamazoo Charter Township 0.0520230321%
Kalamazoo City 0.3787268993%
Kalamazoo County 1.9845600355%
Kalkaska County 0.1646399668%
Kent County 2.7808259408%
Kentwood City 0.1423307082%
Keweenaw County 0.0067676775%
Lake County 0.0728348971%
Lansing City 0.5307983425%
Lapeer County 0.7916953951%
Leelanau County 0.1237383482%
Lenawee County 0.7878386566%
Lenox Township 0.0111917816%
Leoni Township 0.0090926074%
Lincoln Charter Township 0.0178479538%

Rev. 6-12-24 4 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit B - Preliminary Allocation Percentage  
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement for Kroger Settlement

Local Government Preliminary Allocation Percentage
Lincoln Park City 0.1588803292%
Livingston County 1.3371907873%
Livonia City 0.3999768720%
Luce County 0.0638515493%
Lyon Charter Township 0.0060287256%
Mackinac County 0.0909538431%
Macomb County 7.7242005849%
Macomb Township 0.1081932941%
Madison Heights City 0.1443184148%
Manistee County 0.3120953798%
Marion Township, Livingston County 0.0001988576%
Marquette City 0.0313476613%
Marquette County 0.5388637672%
Mason County 0.2487294921%
Mecosta County 0.3321355122%
Melvindale City 0.0519698104%
Menominee County 0.1580179806%
Meridian Charter Township 0.0708027402%
Midland City 0.3023071472%
Midland County 0.5384703258%
Milford Charter Township 0.0064275489%
Missaukee County 0.1002815458%
Monitor Charter Township 0.0044174736%
Monroe Charter Township 0.0119729252%
Monroe City 0.2101937979%
Monroe County 1.5316423152%
Montcalm County 0.6212351900%
Montmorency County 0.0880221572%
Mount Clemens City 0.0503004024%
Mount Morris Charter Township 0.0248988150%
Mount Pleasant City 0.0357778255%
Mundy Charter Township 0.0150794621%
Muskegon Charter Township 0.0360868180%
Muskegon City 0.1748185396%
Muskegon County 1.7053905386%
Muskegon Heights City 0.0500451306%
New Baltimore City 0.0480441296%
Newaygo County 0.4671261358%
Niles City 0.0583312847%

Rev. 6-12-24 5 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit B - Preliminary Allocation Percentage  
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement for Kroger Settlement

Local Government Preliminary Allocation Percentage
Niles Township 0.0215348319%
Northville Charter Township 0.0836973671%
Norton Shores City 0.0701828658%
Novi City 0.1465815056%
Oak Park City 0.1037775542%
Oakland Charter Township 0.0274353387%
Oakland County 5.2264042066%
Oceana County 0.2176466203%
Oceola Township 0.0003615593%
Ogemaw County 0.5563618764%
Ontonagon County 0.0504349004%
Orion Charter Township 0.0484616785%
Osceola County 0.1924215950%
Oscoda County 0.0981702870%
Oshtemo Charter Township 0.0124389806%
Otsego County 0.2838576775%
Ottawa County 1.4829589190%
Owosso City 0.0600391920%
Oxford Charter Township 0.0220651355%
Park Township, Ottawa County 0.0069409957%
Pittsfield Charter Township 0.0254303905%
Plainfield Charter Township 0.0147250675%
Plymouth Charter Township 0.0619046968%
Pontiac City 0.3007870303%
Port Huron Charter Township 0.0144337077%
Port Huron City 0.2605826060%
Portage City 0.0982178051%
Presque Isle County 0.1455220353%
Redford Charter Township 0.2119761371%
Riverview City 0.0482626131%
Rochester City 0.0399194381%
Rochester Hills City 0.0675866509%
Romulus City 0.0931298734%
Roscommon County 0.3840925607%
Roseville City 0.4273474490%
Royal Oak City 0.2596061973%
Saginaw Charter Township 0.0692043420%
Saginaw City 0.4307711416%
Saginaw County 1.6118539630%

Rev. 6-12-24 6 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit B - Preliminary Allocation Percentage  
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement for Kroger Settlement

Local Government Preliminary Allocation Percentage
Sanilac County 0.3468379663%
Sault Ste. Marie City 0.0984697973%
Schoolcraft County 0.0789566063%
Scio Charter Township 0.0051527746%
Shelby Charter Township 0.5065495239%
Shiawassee County 0.7255393777%
South Lyon City 0.0258956950%
Southfield City 0.3934160797%
Southfield Township 0.0001112995%
Southgate City 0.0888423705%
Spring Lake Township 0.0103960225%
Springfield Charter Township 0.0044705319%
St Clair County 1.9960063402%
St Joseph County 0.4265691571%
St. Clair Shores City 0.3399081996%
Sterling Heights City 0.9407553377%
Sturgis City 0.0599318930%
Summit Township, Jackson County 0.0147223455%
Superior Charter Township 0.0121236785%
Taylor City 0.3764778630%
Texas Charter Township 0.0052063171%
Thomas Township 0.0127113988%
Traverse City 0.0620311385%
Trenton City 0.0481846521%
Troy City 0.2360199679%
Tuscola County 0.4432240961%
Tyrone Township, Livingston County 0.0096355544%
Union Charter Township 0.0000512255%
Van Buren Charter Township 0.0686867403%
Van Buren County 0.7628971716%
Vienna Charter Township, Genesee County 0.0086448035%
Walker City 0.0577159947%
Warren City 1.1744758071%
Washington Township, Macomb County 0.0808853142%
Washtenaw County 2.3763653602%
Waterford Charter Township 0.2186201385%
Wayne City 0.0837926529%
Wayne County 10.1863863702%
West Bloomfield Charter Township 0.2622681115%

Rev. 6-12-24 7 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit B - Preliminary Allocation Percentage  
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement for Kroger Settlement

Local Government Preliminary Allocation Percentage
Westland City 0.3261711153%
Wexford County 0.2986947723%
White Lake Charter Township 0.0585435626%
Wixom City 0.0369421752%
Woodhaven City 0.0571927749%
Wyandotte City 0.0976772465%
Wyoming City 0.2554463949%
Ypsilanti Charter Township 0.0578793100%
Ypsilanti City 0.0898598214%
Zeeland Charter Township 0.0061508332%

Total 100.0000000003%

Rev. 6-12-24 8 of 8

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit C - Litigating Local Governments  
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement for Kroger Settlement

Local Government Litigating Local 
Government

Filed in 2017 Filed in 2018 Filed in 2019

Ada Township
Adrian City
Alcona County Yes ✓
Alger County Yes ✓
Algoma Township
Allegan County
Allen Park City
Allendale Charter Township
Alpena County Yes ✓
Alpine Charter Township
Ann Arbor City
Antrim County Yes ✓
Antwerp Township
Arenac County Yes ✓
Auburn Hills City
Bangor Charter Township
Baraga County Yes ✓
Barry County
Bath Charter Township
Battle Creek City
Bay City
Bay County Yes ✓
Bedford Township
Benton Charter Township
Benzie County Yes ✓
Berkley City
Berrien County Yes ✓
Beverly Hills Village
Big Rapids City
Birmingham City
Blackman Charter Township
Bloomfield Charter Township
Branch County Yes ✓
Brandon Charter Township
Brighton Township
Brownstown Charter Township
Burton City
Byron Township
Cadillac City
Caledonia Charter Township
Calhoun County Yes ✓
Cannon Township
Canton Charter Township Yes ✓
Cascade Charter Township
Cass County Yes ✓

Exhibit C - Litigating Local Governments

Rev. 6-12-24 1 of 6

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit C - Litigating Local Governments  
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement for Kroger Settlement

Local Government Litigating Local 
Government

Filed in 2017 Filed in 2018 Filed in 2019

Charlevoix County Yes ✓
Cheboygan County Yes ✓
Chesterfield Charter Township
Chippewa County Yes ✓
Clare County
Clawson City
Clinton Charter Township Yes ✓
Clinton County Yes ✓
Coldwater City
Commerce Charter Township
Comstock Charter Township
Cooper Charter Township
Crawford County Yes ✓
Davison Township
Dearborn City
Dearborn Heights City
Delhi Charter Township
Delta Charter Township
Delta County Yes ✓
Detroit City Yes ✓
Detroit Wayne Mental Health Authority Yes
Dewitt Charter Township
Dickinson County Yes ✓
East Bay Township
East Grand Rapids City
East Lansing City Yes ✓
Eastpointe City
Eaton County Yes ✓
Egelston Township
Emmet County
Emmett Charter Township
Escanaba City Yes ✓
Farmington City
Farmington Hills City
Fenton Charter Township
Fenton City
Ferndale City
Flat Rock City
Flint Charter Township
Flint City Yes ✓
Flushing Charter Township
Fort Gratiot Charter Township
Fraser City
Frenchtown Charter Township
Fruitport Charter Township
Gaines Township, Kent County
Garden City
Garfield Charter Township
Genesee Charter Township

Rev. 6-12-24 2 of 6

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit C - Litigating Local Governments  
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement for Kroger Settlement

Local Government Litigating Local 
Government

Filed in 2017 Filed in 2018 Filed in 2019

Genesee County Yes ✓
Genoa Township
Georgetown Charter Township
Gladwin County
Gogebic County
Grand Blanc Charter Township
Grand Haven Charter Township
Grand Haven City
Grand Rapids Charter Township
Grand Rapids City Yes ✓
Grand Traverse County Yes ✓
Grandville City
Gratiot County Yes ✓
Green Oak Township
Grosse Ile Township
Grosse Pointe Park City
Grosse Pointe Woods City
Hamburg Township
Hamtramck City
Harper Woods City
Harrison Charter Township Yes ✓
Hartland Township
Hazel Park City
Highland Charter Township
Highland Park City
Hillsdale County Yes ✓
Holland Charter Township
Holland City
Holly Township
Houghton County Yes ✓
Huron Charter Township Yes ✓
Huron County
Independence Charter Township
Ingham County Yes ✓
Inkster City
Ionia City
Ionia County Yes ✓
Iosco County Yes ✓
Iron County Yes ✓
Iron Mountain City Yes ✓
Isabella County Yes ✓
Jackson City Yes ✓
Jackson County
Kalamazoo Charter Township
Kalamazoo City
Kalamazoo County Yes ✓
Kalkaska County
Kent County Yes ✓
Kentwood City

Rev. 6-12-24 3 of 6

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit C - Litigating Local Governments  
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement for Kroger Settlement

Local Government Litigating Local 
Government

Filed in 2017 Filed in 2018 Filed in 2019

Keweenaw County
Lake County Yes ✓
Lansing City Yes ✓
Lapeer County
Leelanau County Yes ✓
Lenawee County Yes ✓
Lenox Township
Leoni Township
Lincoln Charter Township
Lincoln Park City
Livingston County Yes ✓
Livonia City Yes ✓
Luce County Yes ✓
Lyon Charter Township
Mackinac County
Macomb County Yes ✓
Macomb Township
Madison Heights City
Manistee County Yes ✓
Marion Township, Livingston County
Marquette City
Marquette County Yes ✓
Mason County Yes ✓
Mecosta County
Melvindale City
Menominee County
Meridian Charter Township
Midland City
Midland County
Milford Charter Township
Missaukee County
Monitor Charter Township
Monroe Charter Township
Monroe City
Monroe County Yes Bellwether
Montcalm County Yes ✓
Montmorency County Yes ✓
Mount Clemens City
Mount Morris Charter Township
Mount Pleasant City
Mundy Charter Township
Muskegon Charter Township
Muskegon City
Muskegon County Yes ✓
Muskegon Heights City
New Baltimore City
Newaygo County Yes ✓
Niles City
Niles Township

Rev. 6-12-24 4 of 6

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit C - Litigating Local Governments  
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement for Kroger Settlement

Local Government Litigating Local 
Government

Filed in 2017 Filed in 2018 Filed in 2019

Northville Charter Township Yes ✓
Norton Shores City
Novi City
Oak Park City
Oakland Charter Township
Oakland County Yes ✓
Oceana County Yes ✓
Oceola Township
Ogemaw County Yes ✓
Ontonagon County Yes ✓
Orion Charter Township
Osceola County Yes ✓
Oscoda County
Oshtemo Charter Township
Otsego County Yes ✓
Ottawa County
Owosso City
Oxford Charter Township
Park Township, Ottawa County
Pittsfield Charter Township Yes ✓
Plainfield Charter Township
Plymouth Charter Township
Pontiac City Yes ✓
Port Huron Charter Township
Port Huron City
Portage City
Presque Isle County Yes ✓
Redford Charter Township
Riverview City
Rochester City
Rochester Hills City
Romulus City Yes ✓
Roscommon County Yes ✓
Roseville City
Royal Oak City
Saginaw Charter Township
Saginaw City
Saginaw County Yes ✓
Sanilac County Yes ✓
Sault Ste. Marie City Yes ✓
Schoolcraft County
Scio Charter Township
Shelby Charter Township
Shiawassee County Yes ✓
South Lyon City
Southfield City
Southfield Township
Southgate City
Spring Lake Township

Rev. 6-12-24 5 of 6

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit C - Litigating Local Governments  
Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement for Kroger Settlement

Local Government Litigating Local 
Government

Filed in 2017 Filed in 2018 Filed in 2019

Springfield Charter Township
St Clair County Yes ✓
St Joseph County
St. Clair Shores City
Sterling Heights City Yes ✓
Sturgis City
Summit Township, Jackson County
Superior Charter Township
Taylor City
Texas Charter Township
Thomas Township
Traverse City Yes ✓
Trenton City
Troy City
Tuscola County Yes ✓
Tyrone Township, Livingston County
Union Charter Township
Van Buren Charter Township Yes ✓
Van Buren County
Vienna Charter Township, Genesee County
Walker City
Warren City Yes ✓
Washington Township, Macomb County
Washtenaw County Yes ✓
Waterford Charter Township
Wayne City Yes ✓
Wayne County Yes ✓
West Bloomfield Charter Township
Westland City Yes ✓
Wexford County Yes ✓
White Lake Charter Township
Wixom City
Woodhaven City
Wyandotte City
Wyoming City
Ypsilanti Charter Township
Ypsilanti City
Zeeland Charter Township

Total 87

Rev. 6-12-24 6 of 6

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Local Government Reporting Local Government
Ada Township Yes
Adrian City Yes
Alcona County Yes
Alger County Yes
Algoma Township No
Allegan County Yes
Allen Park City Yes
Allendale Charter Township Yes
Alpena County Yes
Alpine Charter Township No
Ann Arbor City Yes
Antrim County Yes
Antwerp Township No
Arenac County Yes
Auburn Hills City Yes
Bangor Charter Township No
Baraga County Yes
Barry County Yes
Bath Charter Township Yes
Battle Creek City Yes
Bay City Yes
Bay County Yes
Bedford Township Yes
Benton Charter Township Yes
Benzie County Yes
Berkley City Yes
Berrien County Yes
Beverly Hills Village Yes
Big Rapids City Yes
Birmingham City Yes
Blackman Charter Township No
Bloomfield Charter Township Yes
Branch County Yes

Exhibit D - List of Reporting Local Governments

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Brandon Charter Township Yes
Brighton Township No
Brownstown Charter Township Yes
Burton City Yes
Byron Township No
Cadillac City Yes
Caledonia Charter Township No
Calhoun County Yes
Cannon Township No
Canton Charter Township Yes
Cascade Charter Township Yes
Cass County Yes
Charlevoix County Yes
Cheboygan County Yes
Chesterfield Charter Township Yes
Chippewa County Yes
Clare County Yes
Clawson City Yes
Clinton Charter Township Yes
Clinton County Yes
Coldwater City No
Commerce Charter Township Yes
Comstock Charter Township Yes
Cooper Charter Township No
Crawford County Yes
Davison Township Yes
Dearborn City Yes
Dearborn Heights City Yes
Delhi Charter Township Yes
Delta Charter Township Yes
Delta County Yes
Detroit City Yes
Detroit Wayne Mental Health Authority Yes
Dewitt Charter Township Yes
Dickinson County Yes
East Bay Township No

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



East Grand Rapids City Yes
East Lansing City Yes
Eastpointe City Yes
Eaton County Yes
Egelston Township No
Emmet County Yes
Emmett Charter Township No
Escanaba City Yes
Farmington City Yes
Farmington Hills City Yes
Fenton Charter Township No
Fenton City Yes
Ferndale City Yes
Flat Rock City Yes
Flint Charter Township Yes
Flint City Yes
Flushing Charter Township No
Fort Gratiot Charter Township Yes
Fraser City Yes
Frenchtown Charter Township Yes
Fruitport Charter Township Yes
Gaines Township Yes
Garden City Yes
Garfield Charter Township No
Genesee Charter Township Yes
Genesee County Yes
Genoa Township No
Georgetown Charter Township No
Gladwin County Yes
Gogebic County Yes
Grand Blanc Charter Township Yes
Grand Haven Charter Township Yes
Grand Haven City Yes
Grand Rapids Charter Township No
Grand Rapids City Yes
Grand Traverse County Yes

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Grandville City Yes
Gratiot County Yes
Green Oak Township Yes
Grosse Ile Township Yes
Grosse Pointe Park City Yes
Grosse Pointe Woods City Yes
Hamburg Township Yes
Hamtramck City Yes
Harper Woods City Yes
Harrison Charter Township Yes
Hartland Township No
Hazel Park City Yes
Highland Charter Township Yes
Highland Park City Yes
Hillsdale County Yes
Holland Charter Township Yes
Holland City Yes
Holly Township No
Houghton County Yes
Huron Charter Township Yes
Huron County Yes
Independence Charter Township Yes
Ingham County Yes
Inkster City Yes
Ionia City Yes
Ionia County Yes
Iosco County Yes
Iron County Yes
Iron Mountain City No
Isabella County Yes
Jackson City Yes
Jackson County Yes
Kalamazoo Charter Township Yes
Kalamazoo City Yes
Kalamazoo County Yes
Kalkaska County Yes

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Kent County Yes
Kentwood City Yes
Keweenaw County Yes
Lake County Yes
Lansing City Yes
Lapeer County Yes
Leelanau County Yes
Lenawee County Yes
Lenox Township No
Leoni Township No
Lincoln Charter Township Yes
Lincoln Park City Yes
Livingston County Yes
Livonia City Yes
Luce County Yes
Lyon Charter Township No
Mackinac County Yes
Macomb County Yes
Macomb Township Yes
Madison Heights City Yes
Manistee County Yes
Marion Township No
Marquette City Yes
Marquette County Yes
Mason County Yes
Mecosta County Yes
Melvindale City Yes
Menominee County Yes
Meridian Charter Township Yes
Midland City Yes
Midland County Yes
Milford Charter Township No
Missaukee County Yes
Monitor Charter Township No
Monroe Charter Township No
Monroe City Yes

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Monroe County Yes
Montcalm County Yes
Montmorency County Yes
Mount Clemens City Yes
Mount Morris Charter Township Yes
Mount Pleasant City Yes
Mundy Charter Township Yes
Muskegon Charter Township Yes
Muskegon City Yes
Muskegon County Yes
Muskegon Heights City Yes
New Baltimore City Yes
Newaygo County Yes
Niles City Yes
Niles Township Yes
Northville Charter Township Yes
Norton Shores City Yes
Novi City Yes
Oak Park City Yes
Oakland Charter Township Yes
Oakland County Yes
Oceana County Yes
Oceola Township No
Ogemaw County Yes
Ontonagon County Yes
Orion Charter Township Yes
Osceola County Yes
Oscoda County Yes
Oshtemo Charter Township No
Otsego County Yes
Ottawa County Yes
Owosso City Yes
Oxford Charter Township Yes
Park Township No
Pittsfield Charter Township Yes
Plainfield Charter Township Yes

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Plymouth Charter Township Yes
Pontiac City Yes
Port Huron Charter Township Yes
Port Huron City Yes
Portage City Yes
Presque Isle County Yes
Redford Charter Township Yes
Riverview City Yes
Rochester City Yes
Rochester Hills City Yes
Romulus City Yes
Roscommon County Yes
Roseville City Yes
Royal Oak City Yes
Saginaw Charter Township Yes
Saginaw City Yes
Saginaw County Yes
Sanilac County Yes
Sault Ste. Marie City Yes
Schoolcraft County Yes
Scio Charter Township No
Shelby Charter Township Yes
Shiawassee County Yes
South Lyon City Yes
Southfield City Yes
Southfield Township No
Southgate City Yes
Spring Lake Township No
Springfield Charter Township No
St Clair County Yes
St Joseph County Yes
St. Clair Shores City Yes
Sterling Heights City Yes
Sturgis City Yes
Summit Township Yes
Superior Charter Township No

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Taylor City Yes
Texas Charter Township No
Thomas Township No
Traverse City Yes
Trenton City Yes
Troy City Yes
Tuscola County Yes
Tyrone Township No
Union Charter Township No
Van Buren Charter Township Yes
Van Buren County Yes
Vienna Charter Township Yes
Walker City Yes
Warren City Yes
Washington Township Yes
Washtenaw County Yes
Waterford Charter Township Yes
Wayne City Yes
Wayne County Yes
West Bloomfield Charter Township Yes
Westland City Yes
Wexford County Yes
White Lake Charter Township Yes
Wixom City Yes
Woodhaven City Yes
Wyandotte City Yes
Wyoming City Yes
Ypsilanti Charter Township Yes
Ypsilanti City Yes
Zeeland Charter Township No

Total Reporting 236
Total Non-Reporting 43

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Exhibit E - Reserved

[ Left Intentionally Blank ]

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



Name of Subdivision: <Subdivision Name>
Person Completing Report Contact Information: <Name>

<Email>
<Telephone>

Money Received from Opioid Settlements for Fiscal Year
<Settlement> <Amount Received> <Date Received>
*Repeat as Necessary*

Money Expended from Opioid Settlements

<Opioid Remediation or Non-Opioid Remediation> <Expenditure Title or Agency Appropriated to> <Amount> <Description of Expenditure or Purpose of Appropriation>
*Repeat as Necessary*

Exhibit F - Reporting Template

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



State of Michigan 

Michigan State-Subdivision Agreement for Allocation of Opioid Settlement Agreements 
 
 

By:        
 
 
Its: Assistant Attorney General 

UNRATIFIED

Docusign Envelope ID: 64AA80E5-64D3-4E65-9EFF-05A80CC9986E



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

9.G 

To:  Board Members 

From:  Stephen Gebes, Director of Information Technology 

Date:  August 14, 2025 

Re:  Execution of contract with ImageTrend 

 

ImageTrend is a company that provides an online service portal to Meridian Townhip. The service 
has been utilized for over a decade and is used to manage information related to the Ambulance 
service operated by Township Fire Department. The service is now being expanded to manage Call 
for Service Information for all Fire operations and replacing the previously used Zoll Fire RMS. 
This is a brief summary of the information that will be managed with ImageTrend moving forward: 
 

1. Patient information for anyone being provided service by Meridian Township paramedics. 
2. Care provided to patients both on-scene and in-transport where applicable. 
3. Medications provided to patients during treatment. 
4. Information related to the provision of services on any Fire Department call for service. 
5. Submission of call for service information to state & federal agencies that manage 

emergency response (NERIS) and establish eligibility for federal assistance. 
 

Services 4 & 5 are being added with the execution of the attached contract, but the language is 
otherwise substantially similar to previous years’ contracts. 
 
This modification is being made at this time due to the current RMS provider not providing 
connection to the newly implemented national reporting system. 
 
As such, the following motion is presented for the Board’s consideration: 
 
"Move to execute the order with imagetrend, expanding the existing contract to now include 
NERIS-compliant reporting of fire services" 
 
 

 



1/3 

 

 
Business Private

ORDER FORM 
 

 

Prepared For:  Bill To: 

Kris Cole 

Meridian Township Fire Department  

5000 Okemos Road, Okemos, Michigan, United 

States, 48864‐1038 

cole@meridian.mi.us 

Meridian Township Fire Department  5000 

Okemos Road, Okemos, Michigan, United 

States, 48864‐1038 

 

Salesperson  Quote Number  Order Form 

Date 

Jess Bridley 
Mid-Market Account Executive 

Q‐13213v3  Aug 8, 2025 

Contract Effective Date  Subscription Term (Months) 

Date of the last signature on this Order Form  12 

 
One Time 

 

Description  Qty  Fee Type  Unit Price  Total 

Upgrade EMS to Rescue SaaS Setup  1  One Time  $2,875.00  $2,875.00 

Total Net Price  $2,875.00 

 
Recurring 

 

Description  Qty  Fee Type  Unit Price  Total 

CAD Distribution  1  Recurring  $3,250.00  $3,250.00 

Upgrade EMS to Rescue ‐ SaaS Additional 

Annual 

1  Recurring  $3,150.00  $3,150.00 

Total Net Price  $6,400.00 

 

Total Year 1:  $9,275.00 

Total Recurring:  $6,400.00 

Total One time:  $2,875.00 

Total Contract Value:  $9,275.00 



2/3 

 

 
Business Private

BILLING CONTACT INFORMATION 

Full Name: 

Phone: 

Email: 

Address: 5000 Okemos Road 

Okemos, MI 48864‐1038 

 
 

 
Incident Volume 
Category  Incidents 

Elite  4,200 

This Order Form is subject to the terms of the Master Subscription Agreement located at 

http://www.imagetrend.com/legal/msa unless there is a separate agreement between Meridian 

Township Fire Department  and ImageTrend. 

This proposal is valid for 90 days from the date listed above. 

 
Additional Terms: 

• One‐Time Fees will be due upon contract signature. 
• Recurring fees will be prorated at $533.33 per month from contract signature of this 

Order Form through December 31, 2025. Such prorated Recurring fees will be due upon 

contract signature. 

• Beginning January 1, 2026, Recurring fees will be invoiced annually in advance, unless 

Customer provides notice of cancellation in accordance with the MSA, no less than sixty 

(60) days prior to the end of a Subscription Term. 

• Customer’s subscription to a Service will automatically renew for a one‐year Subscription 

Term at the end of each prior Subscription Term. 

• Payments are due 30 days after receipt of an invoice. 
• Beginning July 1, 2027, Recurring fees are subject to price increases each year 

following the first year of the Subscription Term, and will not exceed 7% of the then‐

current price in any given year. 

• Any terms not defined herein shall have the same meaning as defined in the Master 

Subscription Agreement. 

• The Subscription Term for any Services added by Customer after the beginning of the then‐ 

current Subscription Term will be coterminous with the then‐current Subscription Term for 

existing Services. 
 

 
 

 



3/3 

 

 
Business Private

 

   

ImageTrend 

Name  Jon Sachs 

Title  Chief Financial Officer 

 

 
Signature 

 

Date 
 

Meridian Township Fire Department  

Name  Kris Cole 

Title 
 

 

 
Signature 

 

Date 
 



 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

9.H 

To:  Board Members 
 
From:  Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 

Director of Community Planning and Development 
 
Date:  August 14, 2025 
 
Re: Planned Unit Development 25-012 – 3560 Hulett Road – 
 Reschedule Public Hearing 
 
At the August 7th Township Board Meeting, the Board scheduled a public hearing for the Hulett Road 
Estates project for the August 19th meeting. After discussing with Staff, it was determined that the 
public hearing would need to be pushed back one meeting to meet all necessary noticing 
requirements. No notices have yet been sent to the public and nothing has been published in the 
paper, so all that needs to happen at this point is to reschedule the hearing for the Township Board’s 
meeting on the 2nd.  
 
As a reminder, Planned Unit Development proposals require public hearings at both the Planning 
Commission and Township Board level in order to be considered. Staff has provided the following 
recommended motion to reschedule the public hearing and continue to move the project forward. The 
matter will be back in front of the Board for discussion at the September 2nd meeting.  
 

Move to reschedule the public hearing for PUD 25-012, 3560 Hulett Road, 
Giguere Homes, to the September 2, 2025 Township Board meeting.  

 



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

9.I 

To:  Township Board 

From:  Tim Dempsey, Township Manager 

Date:  August 14, 2025 

Re:  Charitable Gaming License  

 

Local nonprofit organizations can be granted temporary charitable gaming licenses for fundraising 
purposes. The State of Michigan requires that local governments approve a resolution to be 
recognized as a local charitable organization. The Fastpitch Softball Club of Haslett is requesting 
such a resolution so they can hold a BINGO event. 
 
Staff recommends the resolution be approved and proposes the following motion: 
 

 MOVE TO APPROVE THE LOCAL GOVERNING BODY RESOLUTION FOR 
CHARITABLE GAMING LICNESES FOR THE FASTPITCH SOFTBALL 
CLUB OF HASLETT 

 
Attachments:  1. Request from the Fastpitch Softball Club of Haslett 
  2. Charitable Gaming Division Resolution 



1

Tim Dempsey

From: Annette Gamez <annettegamez@icloud.com>
Sent: Tuesday, August 12, 2025 4:55 PM
To: Tim Dempsey
Cc: Stephaney Guild
Subject: Fwd: Fastpitch Softball Club of Haslett
Attachments: Local Civic Qualification Pages 24.pdf

[You don't often get email from annettegamez@icloud.com. Learn why this is important at 
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification ] 
 
>> 
>> Good Afternoon Mr. Dempsey, 
>> 
>> I am reaching out on behalf of the Fastpitch Softball Club of Haslett.  As we are gearing up for a new year of 
fundraising, we are preparing to host a BINGO fundraiser in which we are seeking approval from then State of Michigan, 
Charitable Gaming Division (CGD) to proceed.  The fundraiser will support items such as a new pitching machine, 
equipment and field upkeep. The CGD has requested confirmation from the board confirming that the Fastpitch Softball 
Club of Haslett is a legitimate non-profit supporting youth softball. I would greatly appreciate it if you could complete the 
attached local civic qualifications form as noted on page 3 and request approval from the Board at your upcoming 
meeting.  The CGD approval process will take 4-6 weeks, your consideration to be included in next weeks agenda would 
be so helpful to get the ball moving. 
>> 
>> 
>> Please let me know if you have any questions. 
>> 
>> 
>> Thank you, 
>> Annette Gamez 
>> Fastpitch Softball Club Fundraising 
>> 517-202-8901 
>> 
>> 
>> 
>  
>  



____________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________

Charitable Gaming Division 
Box 30023, Lansing, MI 48909 
OVERNIGHT DELIVERY: 
101 E. Hillsdale, Lansing MI 48933 
(517) 335-5780
www.michigan.gov/cg 

LOCAL GOVERNING BODY RESOLUTION FOR CHARITABLE GAMING LICENSES  
(Required by MCL.432.103 ( )( ))

At a _______________________________ meeting of the ___________________________ 
REGULAR OR SPECIAL TOWNSHIP, CITY, OR VILLAGE COUNCIL/BOARD 

called to order by _____________________________________ on ____________________ 
DATE 

at ______________ a.m./p.m. the following resolution was offered: 
TIME

Moved by __________________________ and supported by _________________________ 

that the request from ________________________________ of ______________________, 
NAME OF ORGANIZATION CITY

county of ____________________________________, asking that they be recognized as a 
COUNTY NAME 

nonpro t organization operating in the community for the purpose of obtaining charitable 

gaming licenses, be considered for _________________________. 
APPROVAL/DISAPPROVAL 

APPROVAL DISAPPROVAL

Yeas: ___________ Yeas: ___________

 Nays: ___________ Nays: ___________

 Absent: ___________ Absent: ___________ 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution offered and 

adopted by the ________________________________ at a __________________________ 
TOWNSHIP, CITY, OR VILLAGE COUNCIL/BOARD REGULAR OR SPECIAL 

meeting held on _________________________________. 
DATE 

SIGNED: ____________________________________________________________________ 
TOWNSHIP, CITY, OR VILLAGE CLERK 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE 

ADDRESS

COMPLETION: Required. 
PENALTY: Possible denial of application. 

BSL-CG-1153(R / )



 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

10.A 

To:  Township Board  
 
From:  Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 
  Director of Community Planning and Development 
 
Date:  August 14, 2025 
 
Re: Text Amendment #2025-06 – Rooster Regulation - INTRODUCTION 
 
Text Amendment #2025-06 is an ordinance update initiated by the Staff to address the regulation 
of roosters in the Township. After some complaints and review our current ordinances, Staff 
discussed this matter with the Township Attorney and we determined that an ordinance update was 
warranted. The proposed changes would prohibit roosters within the Urban Services Boundary that 
the Township has established. This will help prevent conflicts between land uses where 
development has occurred near RR, Rural Residential, zoned properties within the Urban Services 
Boundary.  
 
This matter was discussed by the Planning Commission at their June 23, 2005 meeting. A Public 
Hearing was held on the proposed change at the July 14, 2025 meeting and a recommendation to 
the Township Board was made at the July 28, 2025 meeting. Packets for each of those meetings can 
be found at the links above. The Township Board had an initial discussion of the proposal at their 
August 7, 2025 meeting and raised no major questions.  
 
Staff recommends approval for introduction of the proposed ordinance at this time to amend the 
Code of Ordinances to update the regulations for roosters in the Township. Staff has provided the 
following recommended motion and attached resolution to introduce the ordinance.  
 

Move to adopt the resolution approving for introduction Text Amendment 
#2025-06 to amend the Code of Ordinances of the Charter Township of Meridian 
at Section 86-368 to update the standards for the keeping of roosters the 
Township.   

 
Attachments 

1. Resolution to approve for Introduction Ordinance 2025-06  
2. Ordinance 2025-06 – Rooster Regulations 

https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/30330/638860042367870000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/30414/638878184720970000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/30460/638890277389470000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/30482/638901623639000000


RESOLUTION TO APPROVE – Introduction               Zoning Amendment #2025-06 
Rooster Regulations 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 

County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 19th day of 
August, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT:    ________ ________________________________________________________________ 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT:             
  

 
 The following resolution was offered by ____________________ and supported by 
_________________________. 
 

WHEREAS, Roosters are currently permitted as an agricultural animal on any property 
zoned RR, Rural Residential; and 

 
WHEREAS, Staff has received a series of complaints regarding roosters in recent years; and 
 
WHEREAS, There are a number of RR zoned parcels that are located in the more urbanized 

areas of the Township, leading to potential land use conflicts with roosters; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed the matter on June 23, 2025 and held a 

public hearing on July 14, 2025, before recommending unanimous approval to the Township Board 
on July 28, 2025; and 

  
WHEREAS, the Township Board reviewed the matter at their August 7, 2025 meeting and 

raised no major concerns, directing Staff to bring forward introduction of the ordinance; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby INTRODUCES FOR PUBLICATION AND SUBSEQUENT ADOPTION 
Ordinance No. 2025-06, entitled “An Ordinance to amend the Zoning Ordinance of the Charter 
Township of Meridian at Article IV, District Regulations, to update the standards for the regulation 
of roosters”; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the Charter Township of Meridian is directed 

to publish the Ordinance in the form in which it is introduced at least once prior to the next regular 
meeting of the Township Board. 
 

ADOPTED: YEAS: __________________________________________________________________________________ 
     

NAYS:   __________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 



Resolution to Approve – INTRODUCTION                    Text Amendment 2025-06 
Page 2                               Rooster Regulations 

 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 
Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is 
a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 
19th day of August, 2025.  
 
 

       _____________________________  
        Angela Demas 

       Township Clerk 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-06 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 3 
MERIDIAN AT ARTICLE IV, DISTRICT REGULATIONS, TO UPDATE THE STANDARDS FOR THE 4 

REGULATION OF ROOSTERS 5 
 6 
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 7 
  8 
 9 
Section 1. Section 86-368(b)(8), RR District: One-Family Rural Residential District, is hereby 10 
amended to read as follows: 11 
 12 
Raising and keeping of chickens and rabbits as nonagricultural use. Male chickens, also known as 13 
roosters, are permitted by right only on parcels exceeding five (5) total acres. Roosters are not 14 
permitted on parcels within the Urban Services Boundary. 15 
 16 
The raising and keeping of chickens and rabbits accessory only to one-family dwellings in the RAAA, 17 
RAA, and RA zoning districts is subject to the following requirements: 18 
 19 

a. Registration. 20 
 21 
1. Prior to the raising and keeping of chickens and rabbits on any property under this 22 

section, the property shall be registered with the Department of Community Planning and 23 
Development. 24 

2. Only an individual living in a dwelling on the property shall raise or keep chickens and 25 
rabbits on the property. A registration may not be transferred. 26 

3. Notwithstanding registering with the Township, private restrictions on the use of 27 
property shall remain enforceable and take precedence over the registration. Private 28 
restrictions include, but are not limited to, deed restrictions, condominium master deed 29 
restrictions, neighborhood association bylaws, and covenant deeds. The interpretation 30 
and enforcement of the private restriction is the sole responsibility of the private parties 31 
involved. 32 
 33 

b. Standards. In addition to registering with the Township, the raising and keeping of chickens 34 
and rabbits accessory only to one-family dwellings in the RAAA, RAA, and RA zoning districts 35 
shall comply with the following standards: 36 

 37 
1. In no case shall the maximum number of chickens and rabbits in any combination exceed 38 

four. 39 
2. Roosters shall not be allowed. 40 
3. The sale of chickens, rabbits and eggs on the property is prohibited. 41 
4. Chickens and rabbits shall not be kept in any location on the property other than in the 42 

rear yard as defined by the zoning ordinance. 43 
5. Chickens and rabbits shall be provided with a covered structure and must be kept in the 44 

covered structure or an adjoining fenced area at all times. Covered structures and fenced 45 
areas used for the raising and keeping of chickens and rabbits are subject to all provisions 46 
of Chapter 86 (zoning), except the covered structure and fenced area shall be set back a 47 
minimum of 10 feet from a side or rear lot line and structures propose for reverse 48 
frontage lots shall be located no closer than 30 feet to the right-of-way of the designated 49 
rear yard. 50 



2 
 

6. All structures for the raising and keeping of chickens and rabbits shall be constructed so 1 
as to prevent rodents or other animals from being harbored underneath, within, or within 2 
the walls of the structure. 3 

7. All feed and other items associated with the raising and keeping of chickens and rabbits 4 
shall be kept in containers or otherwise protected so as to prevent access to or contact 5 
with rodents or other animals. 6 

8. The covered structure used to house the chickens and rabbits and any fenced area shall 7 
be kept in a sanitary condition. 8 

9. This section shall not regulate the keeping of chickens in those areas zoned RR (Rural 9 
Residential) or AG (Agricultural) where the raising of chickens is a permitted use when 10 
conducted in compliance with the Michigan Right to Farm Act and the generally accepted 11 
agricultural and management practices promulgated therein. 12 

 13 
Section X. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 14 
invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity or effectiveness 15 
of the remainder of the Ordinance. 16 
 17 
Section X. Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 18 
hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 19 
 20 
Section X.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 21 
that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 22 
 23 
Section X.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication 24 
or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act 25 
(MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a referendum. 26 
 27 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 28 
XXXXXXX, 2025.  29 
 30 
 31 

______________________________ 32 
Scott Hendrickson, Township Supervisor 33 

 34 
 35 

______________________________ 36 
Angela Demas, Township Clerk 37 



 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

11.A 

To:  Township Board Members 
 
From:  Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 
  Director of Community Planning and Development 
 
Date:  August 14, 2025 
 
Re: Parking Lot Landscaping Ordinance Update  
 
As the second part of Staff’s update to the Township parking standards, this proposed ordinance 
would update the landscaping requirements in the ordinance. The Planning Commission began 
work on these changes after the review of the numerical standards for parking for different uses, 
which the Township Board recently adopted. All of the proposed changes are specific to Section 86-
758 and will modernize landscaping requirements in the Township. Highlights include:  
 

- Improving details of how perimeter landscaping is calculated/required. This will help for 
clarity purposes in site plan review.  

- Clarifying when parking lot landscaping needs to be brought into compliance with the 
ordinance, something that will become more important as we see more redevelopment.  

- Clarifying the type of ground cover permitted. This provision will allow for more creativity 
and potential sustainability in design, by specifically encouraging rain gardens, native 
plantings, and xeriscaping, over stone and mulch installations.  

 
The Planning Commission has discussed this on multiple occasions, working through questions and 
details of the ordinance. Discussion occurred on April 28, 2025, June 9, 2025, and June 23, 2025. A 
public hearing was held on the proposed changes on July 14, 2025 with a final recommendation of 
approval to the Township Board made during the July 28, 2025 meeting.  
 
Staff looks forward to discussing this with the Township Board. 
 
Attachments 
1. Parking Lot Landscaping Ordinance – Clean version 
2. Parking Lot Landscaping Ordinance – Redlined version 
 

https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/30043/638811650514430000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/30210/638842149326200000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/30330/638860042367870000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/30414/638878184720970000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/30460/638890277389470000


1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-XX 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 3 
MERIDIAN AT ARTICLE VIII, OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING, TO UPDATE THE STANDARDS 4 

FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS 5 
 6 
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 7 
  8 
 9 
Section 1. Section 86-758, Landscaping, is hereby amended to read as follows: 10 
 11 
In addition to any landscaping required in any particular district, all parking areas shall be 12 
landscaped in accordance with the following provisions: 13 

(1) Landscaping. Landscaping shall be installed and designed to control traffic, provide shade, 14 
screen views into and within vehicular use areas, and separate the parking, circulation, and 15 
service areas, in accordance with the following provisions: 16 
a. Parking lot perimeter landscaping shall be provided surrounding the parking lot in the 17 

amount of one square foot of landscaping per 20 square feet of parking lot pavement. 18 
1. Street trees shall count as both street tree and parking lot perimeter landscaping. 19 
2. Landscaping is required to be outside of the required building and parking lot 20 

setbacks. 21 
b. Parking lot landscape islands shall be provided throughout the parking area in the 22 

amount of 200 square feet for each 10 parking spaces, subject to the following: 23 
1. No landscaped area shall have a dimension less than 10 feet nor an area less than 200 24 

square feet. 25 
2. One shrub per 50 square feet shall be planted on parking lot islands in addition to a 26 

tree.  27 
a. All newly constructed buildings. 28 
b. Expansion of a use that anticipates a 10% or greater increase in required off-29 

street parking spaces. 30 
c. A minimum of two canopy trees shall be provided for every 10 parking spaces, meeting 31 

the following standards: 32 
1. Canopy trees shall be a minimum of 2.5 inches in caliper at time of planting. 33 
2. Conifer trees shall be a minimum of eight feet in height at time of planting. 34 

d. Ground Cover. The types of ground cover listed below are required for any parking lot 35 
landscape installation: 36 

a. Natural Vegetation. These are listed in the Michigan State University Native Plants 37 
and Ecosystem Services Southern Lower Peninsula Regional Plant List, or those 38 
species that occurred within nearby municipal boundaries prior to European 39 
settlement, according to available historical and scientific evidence. These species 40 
shall not require pesticide and herbicide applications, to eliminate toxicity to local 41 
wildlife and aquatic habitats. 42 

b. Rain Gardens. A non-engineered shallow landscaped depression, with compost-43 
amended native soils and adapted plants. The depression is designed to pond and 44 
temporarily store stormwater runoff from adjacent areas, and to allow 45 
stormwater to pass through the amended soil profile. 46 

c. Xeriscape. Landscaping which reduces or eliminates the need for irrigation shall 47 
be encouraged.  48 

d. Mulch. Ten percent of a parking lot island shall be a mulch planting bed with 49 
flowers or flowering shrubs.  50 



2 
 

a. Rocks & stones. Shall not be permitted as a primary ground cover and may only 1 
be used in building perimeter landscaping and in limited situations where 2 
mulching may otherwise be problematic with storm drainage plans, as approved 3 
by the Director of Community Planning and Development. 4 

e. Vehicles shall not be permitted to extend into landscaped areas. Landscaped areas shall 5 
be protected from encroachment by the use of curbing, wheel stops, or similar means. 6 

(2) Building perimeter landscaping.   7 
a. Shall be planted along building walls visible from a public street or from a parking 8 

lot. Shall consist of a mixture of landscaping and approved ground cover types. 9 
b. Must have a minimum of 4 feet in width 10 

(3) Maintenance of landscaping. All landscaped areas shall be maintained in a healthy condition 11 
and kept free of refuse and debris.  12 

a. Irrigation. Irrigation of trees and shrubs is required unless xeriscape plantings have 13 
been approved by the Director of Community Development and Planning.  14 

b. Landscape upkeep. Dead, diseased, or missing vegetation shall be replaced within 30 15 
days, or as soon as weather permits. 16 

c. Snow storage. To protect vegetation, interior landscaped islands less than 20 feet in 17 
each dimension shall not be used for snow storage. 18 

 19 
 20 
Section X. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 21 
invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity or effectiveness 22 
of the remainder of the Ordinance. 23 
 24 
Section X. Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 25 
hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 26 
 27 
Section X.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 28 
that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 29 
 30 
Section X.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication 31 
or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act 32 
(MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a referendum. 33 
 34 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 35 
XXXXXXX, 2025.  36 
 37 
 38 

______________________________ 39 
Scott Hendrickson, Township Supervisor 40 

 41 
 42 

______________________________ 43 
Angela Demas, Township Clerk 44 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-XX 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 3 
MERIDIAN AT ARTICLE VIII, OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING, TO UPDATE THE STANDARDS 4 

FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS 5 
 6 
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 7 
 8 
  9 
 10 
Section 1. Section 86-758, Landscaping, is hereby amended to read as follows: 11 
 12 
In addition to any landscaping required in any particular district, all parking areas shall be 13 
landscaped in accordance with the following provisions: 14 

(1) Interior landscaping. Interior landscaping shall be installed and designed to control traffic, 15 
provide shade, screen views into and within vehicular use areas, and separate the parking, 16 
circulation, and service areas, in accordance with the following provisions: 17 
a. Landscaped islands or medians, having a minimum width of 10 feet, shall be provided to 18 

separate parking bays from internal access drives. 19 
a. Parking lot perimeter landscaping shall be provided surrounding the parking lot in the 20 

amount of one square foot of landscaping per 20 square feet of parking lot pavement. 21 
1. Street trees shall count as both street tree and parking lot perimeter landscaping. 22 
2. Landscaping is required to be outside of the required building and parking lot 23 

setbacks. 24 
b. Landscaped areas Parking lot landscape islands shall be provided throughout the parking 25 

area in the amount of 200 square feet for each 10 parking spaces, subject to the following: 26 
1. The nearest point of any parking space shall not be located further than 65 feet from 27 

the edge of a landscaped area. 28 
1. No landscaped area shall have a dimension less than 10 feet nor an area less than 200 29 

square feet. 30 
 One shrub per 50 square feet shall be planted on parking lot islands in addition to a 31 

tree.  32 
2.  33 
3. The area in excess of the ten-foot minimum width of medians separating parking bays 34 

from internal access drives may be applied to the required parking lot landscaping 35 
area. 36 

4. Required perimeter landscaped buffers shall not be applied to the required parking 37 
lot landscaping area. 38 

3.  39 
a. All newly constructed buildings. 40 
b. Expansion of a use that anticipates a 10% or greater increase in required off-41 

street parking spaces. 42 
c. A minimum of two canopy trees shall be provided for every 10 parking spaces, meeting 43 

the following standards: 44 
1. Canopy trees shall be a minimum of two 2.5inches in caliper at time of planting. 45 
2. Conifer trees shall be a minimum of eight feet in height at time of planting. 46 

d. A minimum of 50% of each landscaped area, at time of planting, shall be planted with 47 
grass, ground cover, shrubs, or other living vegetation. 48 

d. Ground Cover. The types of ground cover listed below are required for any parking lot 49 
landscape installation: 50 

Commented [BS1]: “interior” removed by the PC at the 
public hearing 7/14/2025 

Commented [KC2]: Outside setbacks 



2 
 

a. Natural Vegetation. These are listed in the Michigan State University Native Plants 1 
and Ecosystem Services Southern Lower Peninsula Regional Plant List, or those 2 
species that occurred within nearby municipal boundaries prior to European 3 
settlement, according to available historical and scientific evidence. These species 4 
shall not require pesticide and herbicide applications, to eliminate toxicity to local 5 
wildlife and aquatic habitats. 6 

b. Rain Gardens. A non-engineered shallow landscaped depression, with compost-7 
amended native soils and adapted plants. The depression is designed to pond and 8 
temporarily store stormwater runoff from adjacent areas, and to allow 9 
stormwater to pass through the amended soil profile. 10 

c. Xeriscape. Landscaping which reduces or eliminates the need for irrigation shall 11 
be encouraged. Xeriscape plants range from succulents to leafy, flowering trees. 12 

d. Mulch. One shrub per 50 square feet shall be planted on parking lot islands in 13 
addition to a tree. Ten percent of a parking lot island shall be a mulch planting bed 14 
with flowers or flowering shrubs. Turf grass shall only supplement other ground 15 
cover types to provide a multispecies landscape to increase biodiversity. 16 

a. Rocks & stones. Shall not be permitted as a primary ground cover and may only 17 
be used in building perimeter landscaping and in limited situations where 18 
mulching may otherwise be problematic with storm drainage plans, as approved 19 
by the Director of Community Planning and Development. 20 

e. Vehicles shall not be permitted to extend into landscaped areas. Landscaped areas shall 21 
be protected from encroachment by the use of curbing, wheel stops, or similar means. 22 

(2) Building perimeter landscaping. Parking areas and driveways shall be separated from the 23 
exterior wall of a building, exclusive of pedestrian entrance ways or loading areas, by a 24 
landscaped planting area of at least four feet in width. A minimum of 50% of this landscaped 25 
area, at time of planting, shall be planted with grass, ground cover, shrubs, or other living 26 
vegetation.  27 

a. Shall be planted along building walls visible from a public street or from a parking lot. 28 
a. Shall consist of a mixture of landscaping and approved ground cover types. 29 
b. Must have a minimum of 4 feet in width 30 

(3) Maintenance of landscaping.  31 
(4) All landscaped areas shall be maintained in a healthy condition and kept free of refuse and 32 

debris.  33 
a. Irrigation. Irrigation of trees and shrubs is required unless xeriscape plantings 34 

have been approved by the Director of Community Development and Planning.  35 
b. Landscape upkeep. Dead, diseased, or missing vegetation shall be replaced within 30 36 

days, or as soon as weather permits. 37 
c. Snow storage. To protect vegetation, interior landscaped islands less than 20 feet in 38 

each dimension shall not be used for snow storage. 39 
 40 
 41 
Section X. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 42 
invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity or effectiveness 43 
of the remainder of the Ordinance. 44 
 45 
Section X. Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 46 
hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 47 
 48 
Section X.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 49 
that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 50 

Commented [KC3]: https://www.canr.msu.edu/nativepla
nts/plant_facts/local_info/south_lower_peninsula 

Commented [KC4]: Double credit/ description/ 
requirements 

https://www.canr.msu.edu/nativeplants/plant_facts/local_info/south_lower_peninsula
https://www.canr.msu.edu/nativeplants/plant_facts/local_info/south_lower_peninsula


3 
 

 1 
Section X.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication 2 
or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act 3 
(MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a referendum. 4 
 5 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 6 
XXXXXXX, 2025.  7 
 8 
 9 

______________________________ 10 
Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 11 

 12 
 13 

______________________________ 14 
Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 15 


	08.19.25 Agenda.pdf
	9.A Communications.pdf
	9.C Minutes-August 7, 2025 Regular Township Board Meeting.pdf
	9.D Bills.pdf
	9.E Resolution of Support for Food Rescue US - Lansing Communities.pdf
	9.F Participation Form for the Purdue Direct Settlement.pdf
	9.G ImageTrend (Fire RMS) Contract.pdf
	9.H PUD 25-012 - Reschedule Public Hearing.pdf
	9.I Resolution for Charitable Gaming License - Fastpitch Softball Club of Haslett, Inc..pdf
	10.A Ordinance 2025-06 Introduction.pdf
	11.A  Parking Lot Landscaping.pdf
	ADPE448.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12




